Executive Summary

1. Mission and Vision

Mission Statement

BASIS Indianapolis will provide an accelerated liberal arts education at internationally competitive levels
for all students. The rigorous college preparatory education at BASIS readies students for the
competitive admissions process, helps them become eligible for scholarships, prepares them to prosper
at top colleges, and enriches their lives.

Vision

It is no secret that in today’s economy an outstanding education is of paramount importance. Yet, most
children’s high school careers last only about two million minutes, a relatively short period of time in
which to lay the educational groundwork for a successful future. BASIS’s goal is to use all of those
precious minutes to guide our students toward the highest possible academic achievement. The first
step on this path to success is to maximize the amount of time students spend preparing for their
academic futures. By starting in 5" grade and ensuring our entire curriculum is aligned to college
preparatory standards, BASIS introduces students to intellectual material much earlier than most
schools. Since our educational philosophy is also based around a spiraling method of content practice
and mastery, where material from lessons and years past is continually practiced alongside new
material, our students are exposed to high level concepts frequently throughout the years. This
maximizes the amount of time we have with each student because it offers them the chance to use the
knowledge and skills they need to be productive members of high level academic communities every
day.

Our targeted population includes Indiana students who desire an intensive, internationally-
benchmarked, college preparatory education. In order to give them the education they need to thrive in
college and beyond, we must ensure that the students are well prepared in all aspects of academic and
social life. To that end, the BASIS mission rests on three pillars: a rigorous curriculum, student
accountability, and knowledgeable and effective teachers. Walk into any BASIS classroom at any grade
level and you will see the three pillars of the BASIS educational philosophy at work. We believe strongly
that all students are capable of producing high quality scholarship, but only if they are asked and
expected to do so. The standard BASIS curriculum, successful in all of its incarnations in Arizona, asks
students to wrestle with interesting and challenging problems every day as they explore their world
deeply. We believe that, in order to become great scholars, students need highly qualified, expert
mentors to show them the way. We ask students to take responsibility for their work, to become resilient
and creative thinkers, to commit to memory an extensive cache of core knowledge about which to think,
and to develop confidence in their ability to consistently produce high quality work.

The BASIS educational model is simple in concept but complex in practice. It is not hard to imagine a
school where the students are held to the highest possible academic standards, where they are asked to
take responsibility for their own work, and where the teachers are both highly qualified and motivated
to help students in any way possible. Yet imagining this kind of school is not enough. At BASIS, we bring
these ideas to life every day. We understand that a student’s time to prepare for college is exceedingly
short; it is our goal to make the most of their two million minutes with us by providing them the most
focused and best college preparatory education possible.
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2. Educational Need and Target Population

Indianapolis is a large city, but it retains the charms and personality of a close-knit community. By
introducing an academically rigorous college preparatory school to the city, we will serve students and
parents who seek the challenge of a world-class education. Historically, Indianapolis has a very low high
school graduation rate, especially when compared to cities of similar size. BASIS aims to change this
distressing trend. We will build a school in Northwest Indianapolis in the model of the highly successful,
rigorous liberal arts high schools we operate in Arizona. The school will be open enrollment, and we will
enroll students from across the city and state, offering the academic guidance that Indiana students
need to thrive in the college admissions process and the ever-changing global marketplace. We have
maintained a 100% graduation rate at all of our campuses for the thirteen years we have been in
operation, and we expect the same results at BASIS Indianapolis. Not only will we offer our own students
a world-class education, but we will also raise the expectations for academic rigor and student support
at schools across the city and state.

An important aspect of our school mission is that we provide all students with an academically excellent
education, regardless of educational, ethnic, racial, or socioeconomic background. Thus, we have
targeted a student population that accurately reflects the demographics of the state of Indiana and the
city of Indianapolis. Since we expect to enroll students from all eleven school districts in the city, as well
as from outside city limits, we expect the student population to be diverse. As an open-enrollment public
charter school, BASIS Indianapolis will adhere to all applicable federal, state, and local rules and
guidelines regarding enrollment. As we state in Attachment 7: Enrollment Policy, we will make public an
open enrollment period followed by a lottery, should the demand for registration exceed the number of
spaces we have available. The only priority admission will be given to siblings of students currently
enrolled in BASIS Indianapolis, children of faculty, and children of Board members, which adheres to
Indiana charter school code.

3. Community Engagement

As we made the decision to pursue a charter in Indiana, the BASIS School, Inc. (BSI) New School
Development Department developed a strong working relationship with the authorizer. We believe this
relationship will be essential to the successful opening and operation of BASIS Indianapolis, and we have
every intention of continuing our goal relationship with the Indiana Charter School Board (ICSB). ICSB
offers BASIS the opportunity to work closely with an organization which shares the common goal of
increasing the level of education throughout Indiana.

Beyond our relationship with the authorizer, we have not yet begun our community outreach process. In
our initial examination of the area, we have found Indianapolis to be a progressive, informed, and tight
nit community, and we plan to use the familiarity of Indianapolis residents as a means of disseminating
information about BASIS across the city. We will meet with established school leaders in an effort to
explain our program and to build support for academicinnovation in Indiana. We will also make every
effort to attend PTA meetings, principals’ coffees, Open Houses and other events. We have learned
through experience that community support is essential to successfully opening charter schools. Our
analysis of the Indianapolis community coupled with the tremendous demand for enroliment at our six
existing campuses leaves us confident that we will generate strong support for our internationally
benchmarked program.

4. Education Plan/School Design
BASIS Indianapolis will provide the same internationally benchmarked and challenging curriculum that is

currently in place at the BASIS Schools in Arizona. This curriculum is designed around the philosophy
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that any student can attain academic greatness if greatness is expected and comprehensive academic
support is readily available. Beginning at the 5" grade level, the BASIS curriculum endeavors to teach
substantially more than one year of content each academic year. In other words, 5t grade students at
BASIS not only master the content required in the state’s 5t grade standards, but they also master much
of what a typical 6" grade student learns. By starting at a modest 5t grade level and requiring students to
learn more than a year’s worth of standards every year, we prepare our students to enter Honors and AP
courses beginning in the 9™ grade.

In many ways, the BASIS educational model reflects the power of compound interest; students learn
more than grade level standards each year throughout Lower School, which ensures they are ready for
advanced work in High School. In fact, the raison d’étre of the BASIS Lower School is to prepare all
students for high school work at the level of the world’s best schools. Likewise, the philosophy of the
BASIS high school program is to prepare students to enter college ready to be valuable members of their
academic communities immediately upon matriculation. Many colleges lament the state of America’s
secondary education system because students arrive to campuses unprepared for high-level,
independent work and thus require remediation just to get started in advanced courses. Taking high
level courses in high school and passing difficult, internationally recognized standardized tests is an
effective method for students to prepare for the rigors of college education.

BASIS’s rigorous academic curriculum and strong support system ensure that all of our students have
mastered the material they need to know to excel on a variety of academic assessments. We will use our
own, internally created Pre-Comprehensive and Comprehensive exams, as well as externally created
tests like the International General Certificate of Secondary Education (IGCSE) exams and Advanced
Placement (AP) exams to ensure our students are all mastering essential academic material. These tests
form the backbone of our curriculum, and they are used primarily as benchmarking tools. Our testing
system allows us to check the efficacy of our academic program at every grade level, from 5t grade
through 12" grade, thereby ensuring we are always accountable for what our students learn. Please see
Attachment 23: Portfolio Summary for test results from our currently operating BASIS schools. These
tremendous results, coupled with the media recognition several of our schools have received for being
top ten academic programs in the country, is evidence of the strength of the BASIS program. We fully
expect these strengths to translate well to an Indianapolis community looking for a world-class
educational option.

5. Vision for Growth

BASIS Indianapolis will open in August 2012 and will serve grades 5 — 8 in the first year. Each year
thereafter we will add a grade level, until the fifth year of operation when we will reach our goal of
serving grades 5-12. In the first year of operation, we expect to have five 5" grade classes, five 6™ grade
classes, four 7" grade classes, and two 8th grade classes. Currently, our five year enroliment projection
calls for 465 students in the first year of operation, 556 students in the second year, 604 students in the
third year, 657 students in the fourth year, and 709 students in the fifth year.

We follow this same growth model at each of our replication schools. As we suggest in our Education
Plan, we pride ourselves on the advanced nature of our curriculum. In order to ensure that all of our
students are capable of achieving the lofty goals we set for them, we will modify our curriculum slightly
in the first year of operation. We open the school serving grades 5™-8" to ensure that the students who
attend BASIS Indianapolis during our inaugural year have an opportunity to succeed and to ensure that
the curriculum can be modified to better meet the level of the incoming students while still giving the
students sufficient time to meet the BASIS graduation requirements. This is beneficial for the students,
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who are set up for success rather than failure, and for the school, insofar as we do not waiver from our
mission.

BASIS School, Inc. is currently the charter holder for six open-enroliment, public charter schools in the
state of Arizona: BASIS Chandler, BASIS Flagstaff, BASIS Oro Valley, BASIS Peoria, BASIS Scottsdale, and
BASIS Tucson. At the time of this application, we plan to open our seventh school in Arizona, BASIS
Phoenix, and our first affiliated school in Washington, DC, BASIS Washington, DC. Both schools are
scheduled to open in fall 2012. We also have charter applications out to the Charter School Institute to
open a school in Fort Collins, Colorado, and to the Arizona State Public Charter School Board to open a
school in the Tucson Foothills. As we continue our replication efforts, we will continuously evaluate
potential sites and plan accordingly.

6. Leadership and Governance

Consistent with the operations of existing BASIS schools across Arizona, BASIS School, Inc. (BSI) will be
the charter holder for BASIS Indianapolis. Currently, BASIS School, Inc. contracts with BASIS Educational
Group (BEG) to provide all financial and operational management, including site management, for BASIS
Chandler, BASIS Flagstaff, BASIS Oro Valley, BASIS Peoria, BASIS Scottsdale, and BASIS Tucson. BASIS
School, Inc. has been a charter holder since 1998, and its finances have been and continue to be
prudently managed, as BSI has never had a material finding on any of its financial audits.

The Board of Directors of BASIS School, Inc. is the Corporate Board responsible for policy, and ultimately
responsible for operations of the corporation, including the charter schools. BASIS School Governing
Boards currently consist of the BASIS Chandler School Board, the BASIS Flagstaff School Board, the BASIS
Oro Valley School Board, the BASIS Peoria School Board, the BASIS Scottsdale School Board, and the
BASIS Tucson School Board. These bodies are the governing boards for the schools and are responsible
for the policy decisions of the individual charter schools. The BASIS Indianapolis School Board will be
formed following the approval of our charter and will operate similarly to existing BASIS School Boards.

This direct connection to a strong charter school management organization will provide BASIS
Indianapolis with the kind of stability and surety of vision that the school needs to be successful from
the start. BASIS schools have been in continuous operation for over 13 years, and BASIS Indianapolis
will benefit from the organization’s long history of success.

Founding Group and School Leadership

Founding Group Membership

1. Key Members of the Founding Group

Currently there are seven members of the BASIS School, Inc. Board of Directors: Craig Barrett, Chairman;
Don Budinger, Secretary; John Morton, Treasurer; Terry Sarvas; Clint Bolick; Steve Twist; and Michael
Block. In the spirit of the organization’s mission to affect significant change in American secondary
education, the Board has led the effort to expand BASIS into Indiana. Acting in the best interest of the
school, the Board authorized the BSI New Schools Development Department to represent the school in
our effort to open BASIS Indianapolis. The BSI New School Development team consists of the following
people: Nick Fleege, Director; Sheri Pierce, New Schools Curriculum Director; Paul Morrissey, Manager;
and Ciera Sarager, Administrative Assistant. Together, the Board and the BSI New Schools Development
Department make up the Founding Group for BASIS Indianapolis. Please see Attachment 1: Founding
Group Resumes and Bios for bios and resumes for all founding members.
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As the Board members’ biographies and CVs suggest, our Board is experienced in a wide range of fields
necessary for the successful opening and operation of charter schools. Craig Barrett, the Chairman of
the Board, is the former CEO of Intel Corporation. An avid supporter of BASIS for many years, he
assumed the position of Chairman on July 1, 2011 and has set an aggressive growth plan in his time on
the Board. Dr. Barrett is a staunch supporter of education reform and a staple in the on-going national
dialog on education and education reform, relentlessly pushing for reform measures to help the United
States improve its results in comparison to our international peers.

Along with Dr. Barrett, the BSI Board of Directors includes several other important figures in education
and industry. The BSI Board is a collection of education supporters and experts in their fields; the
direction and vision of the school has grown organically from the members’ various backgrounds and
their shared vision for educational excellence in America.

The BSI New Schools Development Department brings with it over sixteen years of combined experience
in the BASIS schools classrooms and administration. Former teachers and high level administrators, the
team uses its wealth of institutional knowledge to steer the development process for all new BASIS
schools. New Schools Development duties for BASIS Indianapolis include everything from finding a
suitable location and working with contractors on the design of the building, to hiring the faculty and staff
and modifying the standard BASIS curriculum to better fit the needs of the expected student body

in the school’s first years.

The combined efforts of the Board and the New Schools Development Department successfully opened
three new BASIS charter schools in 2011. We have also earned charters in Washington, DC and Phoenikx,
AZ, to begin in August 2012. The founding team has a wealth of experience in designing curricula, putting
in place strong school leadership, operating a charter school budget, managing performance, engaging
with parents and the community, and managing school facilities.

2. Consultants

As referenced above, the BSI Board of Directors consults with the BSI New Schools Development
Department on all matters relating to the opening of BASIS Indianapolis. The Board also enjoys a strong
working relationship with BASIS Educational Group (BEG), an Education Service Provider (ESP). BEG
currently provides statistical analysis services to the Board in reference to BASIS Indianapolis, and they
provide educational services to all six of BASIS’s operational campuses. BEG will propose a services
contract to provide ESP services to BASIS Indianapolis upon implementation of the school’s charter. An
example of a proposed services agreement can be found in Attachment 14: Education Service Provider
(ESP) Documentation.

Background
1. Bringing the Founding Group Together

The driving force behind the creation of BASIS Indianapolis is the sentiment prevalent among the
founding committee members that the value of American secondary education needs to be raised
significantly. The Committee is a group of individuals who are committed to highly rigorous K-12
education and who have joined together to bring a nationally-ranked, open-enrollment school to
Indiana.

As longtime advocates for improving education, the committee has the benefit of its members’
expertise in Lower School and Upper School instruction, curriculum development, comparative global
education standards, standards development, assessment and data analysis, financial and business
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management, non-profit organizational management, marketing, college admissions procedures and
standards, law, and fundraising.

2. The Founding Group and the Indianapolis Community

The BASIS Indianapolis founding group does not have any direct ties to the local Indianapolis community.
We do, however, have strong ties to the education reform movement, and we believe the tenets of this
movement ring true everywhere; American students need educational choice and the bar needs to be
raised in the classroom and in all of our communities if our children want to compete in the global
marketplace. Our ties to the Indianapolis area are then the same ties we have to all cities in America: we
believe there is the possibility to provide a better, world-class education for the students of Indianapolis,
and we pledge to provide that service to the community.

As we have stated, the founding group has a wealth of experience in all matters related to the successful
opening and operation of highly performing charter schools. The wide-ranging skill sets of the Board and
the BSI New Schools Development Department have benefited the organization greatly throughout the
application and startup process for every replicated BASIS school. Please see Attachment 1: Founding
Group Resumes and Bios for information about specific founding group members and their individual
competencies in opening new charter schools.

School Leadership and Leadership Team

Once we are approved for a charter, BASIS will hire a full-time Head of School to begin reaching out in
earnest to potential parents and students in the area while simultaneously training with existing BASIS
staff members. We expect to hire for this position in January 2012. The Head of School will be the BASIS
representative in the Indianapolis community, and as such will give a number of community
presentations and will meet with community leaders in order to further spread the word about BASIS.
The Head of School will also spearhead the student and parent recruitment process during this time.
This is the protocol we have followed in opening every BASIS campus. The previous section detailing our
Board and New Schools Development team personnel summarizes our experience opening charter
schools. The performance of our schools in Arizona is evidence of the ability of these two groups to work
together to lead operations on a new charter school, identify and hire good candidates for leadership
positions, and to train and smoothly transition operations to school leaders.

The BSI New Schools Development Department is tasked with identifying qualified candidates for the
Head of School. The search will take place nationally, but we will also look closely at candidates from the
Indianapolis area. The Head of School is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations and
overall education process in the Lower and Upper Schools. The Head of School directly supervises all
BASIS teachers and his/her Administrative and Program Assistants. BASIS teachers contact the Head of
School to discuss any issues directly related to personnel, including, but not limited to, contractual
obligations, the school mission and overall curricular objectives, evaluation procedures, and professional
conflicts. Therefore, when looking for qualified candidates, we will seek someone with a strong
management background, capable of leading a team of innovative educators and maintaining consistency
in the educational program and day-to-day operations. Although it is a benefit to any application,
previous experience in education is not required of our Head of School.

Once the New Schools Development team has identified several viable candidates, they will be put

through a series of telephone and in-person interviews with various members of the BASIS organization.
At the end of the interview process, the team will make their recommendation to the Board, who will
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then have the opportunity to interview the chosen candidate. Our hiring process is always thorough,
especially when we are identifying the leaders of our schools.

Immediately upon being hired, the newly hired Head of School will work closely with the New Schools
Development team to lead development of the school. In the spring, we will hire other key management
personnel who will then also be trained by the New Schools Development team just and will eventually
take over most of the day-to-day development operations. These positions include the Head of
Operations and the School Director. The following section clearly explains the responsibilities of the key
management personnel at BASIS Indianapolis. Please note that in the first year we will employ one School
Director. When the school expands to include more upper level grades, a second School Director will be
hired and trained, which will give us an Upper School Director and a Lower School Director.

Responsibilities of Key Leadership Personnel

Head of School
The Head of School is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations and overall education
process in the Lower and Upper Schools. The Head of School directly supervises all BASIS teachers and
his/her Administrative and Program Assistants. BASIS teachers contact the Head of School to discuss any
issues directly related to personnel, including, but not limited to, contractual obligations, the school
mission and overall curricular objectives, evaluation procedures, and professional conflicts. Duties
include, but are not limited to:

e Setting the School Calendar, including vacation dates and testing dates;

e Reporting student demographic information, attendance reports, grade reports, and other student

data required under State law;

e Planning and executing a one week BASIS training camp for on-site employees;

e Monitoring and managing the quality of education in the classroom throughout the school year;

e Overseeing the coordination of standardized exams as required by the state;

e Overseeing the coordination of Pre Comprehensive and Comprehensive exams;

e Overseeing the coordination and execution of parent and student surveys;

e Overseeing the coordination and execution of the BASIS teacher-to-teacher peer review process;

e Recruiting and hiring teachers and office staff as needed;

e Communicating with parents regarding school calendar and events, student issues, and other

concerns that arise;
e Managing employee issues as they arise; and
e Ensuring the schools are in compliance with all state and federal regulations and requirements.

Lower and Upper School Directors

The Lower and Upper School Directors are responsible for educational services delivered to

students. The Lower and Upper School Directors at each school site also oversee the office staff and
Student Service Providers (e.g., Student Support Specialist, Student Counselor, College Counselor) and
are responsible for student services, directing and overseeing the Student Support Programs, meeting
with students and teachers regarding classroom discipline issues, and addressing student achievement
issues.

A BASIS teacher’s instructional process and communication with students and parents is monitored and

supported, depending on which grade levels he or she teaches, by the Lower and/or Upper School
Director. BASIS teachers contact the Lower and Upper School Directors to discuss any issues related to
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the delivery and support of educational services, including, but not limited to, parent-teacher
communication, classroom scheduling, classroom supplies, and pedagogical strategies.

Head of Operations

The Head of Operations is responsible for the financial operations of the school, maintenance and
development of the school premises, IT services delivery, IT equipment operation, and operations of
auxiliary programs (e.g., Late Bird, extracurricular programs).

The Head of Operations monitors expenses, revenues, liabilities, and receivables that are predetermined
by the size of the school (number of students, teachers, and number of courses taught), size and quality
of the physical plant, and the school environment. It is the responsibility of the Head of Operations to
maintain all the assets and equipment located on the school’s premises. The Head of Operations prepares
all contracts related to maintenance providers. The Head of Operations is responsible for monitoring the
quality and quantity of delivered services and recommends all regular invoices for payment when those
are accurate.
Lower School Assistant Director/Student Services Coordinator
e Provides administrative support to the Lower School Director as needed,;
e Monitors individual student progress;
e Monitors individual student discipline issues; and
e Manages the Student Support program which provides support to struggling students or students
who may benefit from early intervention techniques.
Certified Special Education Provider
e Provides Special Education programs to the school and Special Education instruction to special
student populations;
e Maintains compliance with state and federal guidelines (e.g., FERPA) and ensures all files are
correct and up to date;
e Manages the Special Education program so the students get the most they possibly can out of it;
and
e Initiates the search for organizations through which BASIS may contract out some of our Special
Education needs.
Upper School Assistant Director/College Counselor
e Provides administrative support to the Upper School Director as needed,;
e Monitors individual student progress;
e Coordinates school visits from college admissions counselors;
e Educates all BASIS students about their options in higher education;
e Learns about each individual student and his or her particular interests and needs;
e Guides students toward the post-secondary option that is the best fit for that student;
e Fosters a college counseling program that is all-inclusive, regardless of a student’s academic
record or year in school;
e Monitors, mentors, and encourages students in the completion of college applications; and
e Collects information regarding college admissions and reports data to the Data Director.

Education Plan

Curriculum at a Glance
e Students must pass classes and end-of-year comprehensive exams to be promoted
e College Preparatory education starting in the Lower School
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e Comprehensive benchmarking system beginning in 6™ grade including IGCSE and AP exams in
Upper School

e Taught at international standards, while ensuring students cover standards at or (often) before
grade level

e BASIS Tucson has consistently been ranked among Newsweek, US News & World Report, The
Washington Post and BusinessWeek’s top-ranked academic programs

High School Graduation Requirements

As a college preparatory school BASIS Indianapolis will take great care to meet all of the Indiana high
school graduation requirements. We have maintained a 100% high school graduation rate at all of our
existing schools, and we expect that level of excellence to continue at BASIS Indianapolis. Aligning our
program to the Indiana high school graduation requirements, and ensuring all of our students are on
target to meet those requirements, is essential to maintaining our perfect college matriculation record.

General Credit Policies:
Students are awarded 1/3 credit each trimester provided they do not accrue excessive absences.

Students receive full credit if they fulfill all of the following requirements:
e They earn a Cumulative Course Grade higher than F, or they fulfill the conditions to advance
from conditional promotion status to promotion status;
e They earn a D- or higher on their Final Exam, or score a 2 or higher on the BASIS Alternative AP
Exam; and
e They do not accrue excessive absences.

Students who fail to fulfill any of the above conditions do not receive any credit.

Grade Point Averages (GPA) at BASIS are calculated on the 4.0 scale. BASIS does not at any time weight
GPA for Honors or AP courses. This was determined after close consultation with college admissions
personnel, who generally expressed a desire to have un-weighted GPA from high schools.

High school transcripts include the final grades the student earns for each course s/he takes at BASIS
and the cumulative GPA.

Each BASIS school offers different electives, which often depend upon the various academic interests
and backgrounds of their teachers; however, they always offer two distinct kinds of electives: Academic
Electives and General Electives. Academic Electives include classes like AP Micro- and Macroeconomics,
AP Psychology, AP Computer Science, Advanced Topics in History, and Advanced Music Theory. General
Electives include classes like PE, 2D Art Studio, 3D Art Studio, Band, and Drama.

In order to graduate from BASIS, students must reach our minimum exit standards, which are
represented on the course sequences found in Attachment 4: Course Scope and Sequence. BASIS
Indianapolis makes it very clear in the school’s mission and vision that the curriculum is advanced;
therefore, we require our students to achieve much more than the state or common core standards.
Our Course Sequences show very clearly what we expect from the students at each grade level
throughout the academic program. Included in their exit standards is the mandate that all students must
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take at least 8 AP courses and at least 6 AP exams. All students must also reach at least AP Calculus AB
before graduation.

These graduation requirements are more rigorous than any state’s requirements and ensure that our
students are among the best prepared, most college-ready students in the world.

Students deemed to be at risk of dropping out of high school or not meeting the proposed graduation
standards will be serviced through the BASIS Student Support Program. This program gives students
one-on-one guidance, tutoring, and support in an effort to help every student reach his or her potential.
The program has been successful in helping BASIS schools maintain a 100% graduation rate throughout
our history. Please see the subsection entitled “Special Populations and At-Risk Students” for a complete
overview of the BASIS Student Support Program.

School Calendar and Schedule

Daily Schedule
The specific hours of the BASIS Indianapolis School Day schedule will be determined based on feedback
from prospective parents and students.

School Day Organization

The School Day is divided into two parts: the Instructional Program and the Extracurricular Program. The
Extracurricular Program occasionally coincides with elective periods during the school day, but
extracurricular activities may also be organized before or after the school day ends and during out-of-
school days (weekends, holidays, etc.).

Instructional Program
In the Lower School, the Instructional program consists of seven (7) core periods, each 50 minutes long,
and a lunch period.

In the Upper School, the Instructional Program consists of one (1) morning elective period, six (6) core
course periods, a lunch period, and one (1) afternoon elective period.

Upper School Elective Periods
The morning elective period (50 minutes) occurs every day before the 1* core course period.
The afternoon elective period (50 minutes) occurs every day after the 6 core course period.

Upper School and Lower School Lunch

The schools operated by BASIS School, Inc. do not offer any food services. Students must bring
their lunches each day. ot through 12" grade students may leave campus for lunch if a
parent/guardian provides written permission to the School Office.

Supplemental Programming

Extracurricular Program

The Extracurricular Program supports the Instructional Program. It consists of the Early Bird and Late
Bird Programs, which take place before and after the Instructional Program respectively, and any sports
or other extra-curricular activities students participate in through the school.
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Early Bird Program

The Early Bird Program serves parents/guardians who need to drop off their students early. A
staff member supervises students in a designated area at the school as they study and prepare
for the academic day.

Late Bird Program

The Late Bird Program serves parents/guardians who cannot pick up their students immediately
after school. Participants are supervised by a staff member in a designated area of the school as
they start on homework or do other school-related work.

Extracurricular Activities

Although our more academic offerings like quiz bowls and science clubs are often the most
popular extra-curricular programs at BASIS schools, we also have a very strong sports and
exercise program in which many students choose to take part. Traditional sports like soccer and
basketball are popular at all levels, but there are also alternative exercise options including
fencing, rugby, yoga, martial arts, and triathlon training. Many students also use their afternoons
to participate in a number of community service projects, ranging from volunteering at the local
boys’ or girls’ club to entertaining senior citizens in local nursing homes.

The following is a partial list of the extracurricular activities at BASIS schools:

Band National Junior Honor Society
Chess Club Philosophy Club

Chinese Club Piano

Comedy Club POWER

Drama Recycling/Environmental Services Community Services Club
Enviroclub Robo-Rocketry

Filmmaking Club Science Bowl

Flag Football Spanish Club

French Club Strings

Guitar Tennis

Journalism Theatre

Magazine of Literature and Arts Volleyball

National Honor Society Yearbook

In order to direct the largest amount of funding possible into the classrooms, extracurricular programs
will generally carry a participation fee; however, there will be several free options, and BASIS will
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provide a financial aid program for any low income families whose students wish to participate in the
pay-for-play programs. Applications for the financial aid program will be available at the front office of
the school. We do not plan to offer any summer school.

In order to address students’ mental, emotional, and social development, we will employ a full-time
Student Support Coordinator. This person will be responsible for working with students on their study
habits as well as their development outside of the classroom. Please see the next subsection of this
application, entitled Special Populations and At-Risk Students, for more information about our Student
Support Program.

School Culture

The BASIS school culture makes high academic achievement and intellectual engagement the norm and
allows students to realize and fulfill their own great academic potential.

Special Populations and At-Risk Students

Special Education

BASIS uses certified Special Education providers at all campuses to ensure special student populations
get the services they require and to ensure that the school follows all state and federal laws regarding
Special Education procedures.

During the registration process, parents are asked to inform the school if their child receives services
from a special education program. With this information, the school is able to request the records for
the child and provide the services seamlessly upon a child’s enrollment. If at any time a teacher or
parent alerts the school to potential exceptional needs, the School Director works with the Special
Education Teacher and Student Support person to create a study team to meet and discuss the child’s
performance. Following the conclusion of the Child Study team meeting, one of the following outcomes
may occur:

o No further action is required because the teachers feel that the characteristicis typical of
students in that grade level. The teachers provide individual direction in the classroom on their
own to help the child.

e Recommendationto the School Director to seek an evaluation by the School Psychologist,
Speech Therapist or Special Education teacher. The School Director contacts the parent and
coordinates testing.

e Recommendation to the School Director that the student be placed on the Student Support
program.

If a student has an Individual Education Plan (IEP) or 504 plan, the student is provided differentiated
instruction by either the regular classroom teacher or a combination of the classroom teacher and
special education teacher. If the student is to receive speech or occupational therapy services, the
services are schedule so that there is minimal loss of instructional time in the core subjects. The child’s
progress is monitored closely and a summary of the student’s progress toward each of the measureable
goals is completed by the therapist or special education teacher. Since the BASIS Progress Grade Reports
provide very detailed statistics on a student’s performance, a School Director, teacher, or

parent can quickly assess the student’s progress toward the defined measureable goals and can ask that
the IEP team meet again to review the accommodations, modifications, or recommendationsin the IEP.
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BASIS complies with all rules and provisions related to working with students with special needs.
Specifically detailing the curriculum, modification, and accommodations before assessing the needs of each
student is in direct violation of IDEA and is against the spirit of an Individual Education Plan. We will hire
one or more case managers depending on the number of students who enroll with IEPs and 504s. Required
services are administered within the regular education classroom (the LRE) whenever possible. All required
services that cannot be provided in-house are contracted out to special education service providers.

English Language Learners (ELL)

During the registration process, parents are asked to indicate their child’s primary language or language
most used. If the primary language is something other than English, the student’s file is given to the
Student Support person who communicates with the parent to have their child tested for English
Language Proficiency using the assessment recommended by the state of Indiana.

In the case of English Language Learners, we anticipate using Content-Based English as a Second
Language Programs to help students achieve language proficiency. We will hire an ESL-certified teacher if
the number of students needing this service is relatively high. If a relatively small number of students
need ELL service, a BASIS teacher will undergo ESL certification. We will contract out any services that
cannot be provided in-house.

We cannot fully plan for our ESL student population until we actually see our students enroll in the school
and get an accurate count of those requiring ESL services and what kind of services they require. Many
English teachers are certified ESL teachers as well, and we have found this very useful in helping us serve
our ESL population at operational BASIS schools.

Our program is carefully calibrated to ensure every student, at-risk or not, is able to learn at a world class
level. We believe that one of the failures of the American education system is in the insistence on setting
the bar too low for our students, especially for at-risk and underserved students. We expect the same
results from all of our students, no matter what their background, and our comprehensive student support
system ensures that all students have the same opportunity to thrive in our program, so long as they take
advantage of the myriad opportunities for help that we make available to them. Instead of modifying our
standards based on a student’s educational or socioeconomic background, we take it

upon ourselves to work with that student to ensure he or she is able to reach our standards every step of
the way. This system of student support has proven very successful in our operational schools, and it
helps all of our students build the self-confidence they need to thrive in the world beyond secondary
school.

Student Discipline

Student Support Program

The student support program at BASIS is meaningful, comprehensive and timely, and designed to
proactively identify and assist all student educational, emotional, and motivational needs. The program
begins before students are enrolled in the school and continues throughout their time at BASIS.
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The school’s academic rigor and high expectations regarding student learning demand an environment
that is free from disruption and fosters mutual respect among students and staff members. To accomplish
this, the school has developed clear rules concerning student behavior. These rules are strictly enforced
without discrimination on the basis of gender, religious belief, ethnic background, nationality, or
disability. During the first week of school, BASIS Indianapolis will send home a copy of its Parent-Student
Handbook with every enrolled student, which will clearly outline the discipline expectations for the year.

The disciplinary policy is enforced each school day, for all students, whenever they are on school
premises. This policy is also enforced anywhere organized school events take place.

The school reserves the right to discipline students for behavior that occurs off school premises, behavior
that occurs off campus at school eorganized events, or behavior that takes place before the student is
enrolled. In such cases the school, in its sole discretion, may schedule a hearing to determine whether the
student will be allowed to enter or continue at BASIS. The school may honor the disciplinary

consequences imposed while the student attended another school.

The BASIS Disciplinary philosophy is based on five key principles of behavior each member of the
community agrees to follow. These principles are based on respect for each individual’s right to be
educated in a safe environment and the strong belief that academic greatness demands social greatness as
well. The following is the Code of Conduct BASIS developed with these factors in mind:

Code of Conduct: 5 Key Principles of Behavior

1. Promote respect for fellow students and staff members: All students are expected and required to
behave in a respectful manner toward themselves, other students, staff, and property. In particular, the
school adheres to a zero tolerance policy toward any language or behavior that intimidates, belittles, or
causes physical or emotional injury to others.

2. Promote respect for all individuals: BASIS is fortunate to have a very diverse student population from a
variety of ethnic, cultural, and religious backgrounds. The school strives to provide an environment where
all students feel comfortable and thrive. For this reason, certain behaviors are strictly prohibited on school
premises. These include, but are not limited to, the use of derogatory statements in reference to race,
sexuality, ethnicity, culture, or religious background.

3. Promote individual responsibility and responsibility for community: Each student will be held individually
responsible for his/her own language and actions. This responsibility extends to any knowledge of
misconduct by other students. Staff members will not tolerate bullying or cheating and neither should
students. If students are aware of misconduct by another student, it is their responsibility to inform a staff
member. Withholding such information is considered a Discipline Violation. Staff members make every
effort to ensure the confidentiality of any student who reports misconduct by a classmate, and they invoke
appropriate sanctions against any student who responds to another in a retaliatory manner.

4. Provide a safe environment for students: It is the responsibility of all students to immediately inform a
staff member about any possible threat to student or staff safety, health, or property they may observe or
of which they may have knowledge. Withholding such information is considered a Discipline

Violation.

5. Provide a disruption-free educational environment. No BASIS student will be allowed to disrupt

another student’s learning. Classroom disruptions of any kind may be considered Discipline Violations.
Please see Attachment 8: Student Discipline Policy for the complete rules and regulations that BASIS
Indianapolis will adopt regarding student behavior.

Reporting Mechanism

BASIS anticipates using PowerSchool as its main student information system (SIS). PowerSchool provides
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the necessary interface to communicate and synchronize data held in the state of Indiana’s reporting
system. We will use PowerSchool to appropriately communicate student assessment and progress to
parents, the authorizer and the broader community through the required reporting tool. PowerSchool is
used in schools across the state and is able to provide the data necessary for SPED, ELL, and other
similar programs. Features include:

PowerTeacher
ReportWorks

Student Record and Transcript Exchange
Assessment Analysis and Response to Intervention
PowerScheduler

PushButton State Reporting

oA wWwNRE

PowerTeacher provides our teachers a mechanism to update student grades with few data entry lags.
ReportWorks can be utilized for both internal and external analysis purposes. Internally, ReportWorks
provides a mechanism to create custom reports to identify students who may need extra help to achieve
their academic goals. Externally, ReportWorks provides a user-friendly interface to create reports
through data-mining queries for our websites and publications. It is also used to provide necessary
information on an ad hoc basis to the authorizer and the IDE.

Student Record and Transcript Exchange is utilized to exchange accurate student grade information with
other institutions. Assessment Analysis and Response to Intervention provide a means by which our staff
can segregate data based on categories such as gender, ethnicity, special education and other custom
metrics set by the state. Teachers are provided access to the assessment analyses for planning purposes.
The data is used in conjunction with the audit process and the board exam system to give the teachers data
and results that reflect not only whether they are teaching what they are supposed to teach, but also that
they are getting the results they need for each student to be successful. The PowerScheduler utility is used
at the beginning of the school year to schedule teachers, students and classes. And finally, the PushButton
State Reporting field is used to comply with all Federal and State requirements.

During the implementation phase of the SIS, the BASIS Management Information Systems Director and IT
Director ensure the necessary technological infrastructure is present at the BASIS Indianapolis school site.
The Management Information Systems Director also ensures that our staff is properly trained to utilize all
the important facets of the SIS system.

Plan for Taking Corrective Action Should the School Fall Below Achievement Goals

As the chief on-site administration officer, it is the Head of School’s responsibility to ensure the school is
reaching its achievement goals. Should the school fall below these achievement goals, the BASIS
Indianapolis Board of Directors will meet to determine sanctions for the Head of School. This meeting will
occur within a reasonable time period after the last day of school of the year in question. Sanctions for the
Head of School may include, but are not limited to, a warning, a written warning, a period of probation, or
dismissal from the position. The Head of School will also meet with the BASIS Curriculum Director to
determine corrective measures well in advance of the next school year.

Please see the subsection entitled Professional Development for information about how BASIS
Indianapolis will remediate with teachers who fall below performance standards in the classroom. Please
see the subsection entitled Special Populations and At-Risk Students for information about how BASIS
Indianapolis will remediate with students who are in danger of falling below performance standards.
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Parent and Community Involvement

Building Family-School Partnerships

Traditionally, public schools serve a small community of people who live in relatively close geographic
proximity to one another. The natural support systems that develop in the neighborhoods close to a
school help guide the students through their school years. Because BASIS students will come from a
wide geographic range, they will not naturally have the neighborhood support they might come to
expect of their local school. Therefore, the Parent Support Organization (BASIS Boosters) will be
essential in helping BASIS build that same sense of community within its walls. The BASIS Indianapolis
Parent Booster organization will help raise money for school activities and will be involved in the social
programs offered at BASIS, tailoring the programs to the needs and interests of the students and the
community. In the past, existing BASIS Boosters Organizations have secured guest speakers to speak
with students about various social issues. They often organize school dances or other school-wide
activities for students, parents, teachers, and staff. At the beginning of the school year, BASIS parents
will be instrumental in organizing transportation, creating opportunities for new parents to meet each
other, and building a sense of family and community. This level of involvement builds strong ties
between BASIS families and the school and is a critical part of the foundation for student success.

Parental Involvement before Opening

Prior to the child’s enroliment, parents participate in an average of two informational sessions each.
These will be led by the BASIS Indianapolis Head of School and select members of the BASIS new school
development staff. These sessions educate parents on the specific expectations BASIS has for students
and parents, and they allow for a discussion with teachers in order to learn helpful strategies for
transitioning into the BASIS program. The purpose is to involve the parents in a meaningful partnership
with BASIS Indianapolis and to train them on how to best support their child’s education. After
enrollment, Parent-Teacher Meetings and Open Houses continue to develop the relationship between the
parents and the school by allowing parents the opportunity to speak directly to the teachers about their
children’s progress.

We will make every effort to ensure information about BASIS is spread across all Indianapolis
neighborhoods and across the state generally, and we will use community partners to make sure those
families who might not normally be privy to such information, and families and students considered at risk,
are well aware of our presence in the community. We believe strongly that every child deserves the kind of
education BASIS offers, and we will actively work to make sure as many children as possible are informed
about us.

Parental Involvement after Opening

After a child has enrolled in school, we actively inform students and parents about school business.
School calendars, Upcoming Event calendars, teacher biographies, and examples of student
achievements are posted on the school website. These postings offer the parents a chance to know
what is happening in the school community and encourage them to get involved.

Parent Communication

Students are required to keep an assignment notebook which allows parents to check that homework
assignments are completed daily, weekly, and monthly. Students also receive formal Grade Reports at
designated times throughout the year, offering parents a formal assessment of their children’s progress. At
the end of each grading period, parents are invited to campus for awards ceremonies to celebrate student
achievement. In between formal assessments, Parent-Teacher Meetings and Open Houses

allow parents to communicate directly with teachers, and Parent-Director meetings allow the parents to

ngﬁdeArSﬁgth&%ﬁg% iSl‘stratlon. BASIS is committed to communicating clearly and effectively with parents.



Community Resources

While we agree that community partnerships are beneficial to the operation of new charter schools, we
have found it essential to ensure our new campuses are self-sustainable and operational before relying on
the commitments of others. We plan to reach out to community organizations once we are awarded a
charter, but our focus at this point is to ensure that the school is able to operate on its own volition. Please
see Attachment 18: Evidence of Support from Community Partners for an example of the kind of
community support BASIS Indianapolis has garnered.

Replication Capacity

BASIS School, Inc. currently operates six schools in Arizona: BASIS Chandler, BASIS Flagstaff, BASIS Oro
Valley, BASIS Peoria, BASIS Scottsdale, and BASIS Tucson.

BASIS Phoenix and a new BASIS-affiliated school, BASIS Washington, DC, will open in fall 2012. We are also
currently applying for charters with the Charter School Institute in the state of Colorado and with the
Arizona Board for Charter Schools in Arizona. BASIS School, Inc. has replicated four times in the last two
years, so we are quite comfortable with the process. BASIS Indianapolis will follow the same replication
schedule as all of our previously opened schools. Please see Attachment 19: Start-Up Plan for more
information about specific tasks and timelines necessary for opening BASIS Indianapolis.

Portfolio Review and Performance Record

Please see Attachment 23: Portfolio Summary for information on our currently operating schools in
Arizona. Included in this attachment are results from our three mature campuses in Arizona on the
following standardized tests: the state mandated Arizona Instrument for Measuring Standards (AIMS)
exams, International General Certificate of Secondary Education (IGCSE) exams, and Advanced
Placement (AP) exams. By all of these measures, BASIS students are excelling in comparison to their
peers in the state, the country, and around the world. (NOTE: Since the BASIS campuses in Chandler,
Flagstaff, and Peoria opened in August 2011, they do not have any standardized data to provide.)

From the data provided in Attachment 23, it is clear that BASIS schools perform at an internationally
competitive level. BASIS Tucson and BASIS Scottsdale have been incredibly successful in raising the bar for
what constitutes a “good public high school.” BASIS Tucson’s top national ranking in Newsweek’s and US
News & World Report’s lists of America’s Best High Schools has brought a school in Tucson, AZ — an area
with limited reach in the national media market — to the forefront of the national debate about education
reform. Not only did the rankings prompt a visit from documentary filmmaker, Robert Compton, who
later produced a film about the schools entitled “Two Million Minutes: The 21* Century Solution,” they
also launched BASIS into the national media spotlight, provoking visits from and news stories by the
Economist, the Washington Post, CNN Tonight, Education Week, NPR, Meet the Press, eSchool News,
World Magazine, the Russian American Journal, and Telemundo in addition to coverage by local and state
media outlets.

The increase in national attention did not come without merit. Founded in 1998, BASIS Tucson is BASIS
Schools’ flagship campus. Its rigorous curriculum, student and teacher accountability mechanisms,
knowledgeable and effective teachers, and competent managers has resulted in outstanding academic
achievement results which lead to the school’s #1 ranking in Newsweek’s list of America’s Best High

Schools just ten years after the school’s founding. In fact, BASIS Tucson has ranked in Newsweek’s top ten
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list of America’s Best High Schools for six years running and US News & World Report’s top 20 list of Best
High Schools since the ranking’s inception, earning the #9 spot in 2010. In 2011, the Washington Post
rated BASIS Tucson the 4™ best academic program in the country and Us News and World Report named it
2" in the nation in their “Best High School for Math and Science” ranking. In 2009, BusinessWeek named
BASIS Scottsdale the “Top Arizona School for Overall Academic Performance.”

Along with these accolades and news stories came an explanation of the BASIS philosophy. Perhaps

CNN reporter, Casey Wian, put it best when he described BASIS as “A charter school with a modest goal:
revolutionizing the American education system.” The news segments generally focused on BASIS's rigorous
curriculum, which seeks to prepare all students, regardless of race, gender or family income, to compete
with their international peers in top performing educational systems around the world, teachers who are
knowledgeable in their discipline and teacher and student accountability mechanisms implemented
through external benchmarking mechanisms (i.e. Board Examination Systems). The segments generated
interest from educators, politicians, and parents across the country, many of whom have visited the BASIS
schools in recent years.

To illustrate the great success of BASIS relative to schools across the country, we have included the
picture below, which illustrates the ranking pyramid for all 22,000+ high schools eligible for inclusion in
the US News ranking. The top 100 high schools, considered “Gold Medal Schools,” were ranked by
number. With a consistent top ranking, BASIS Tucson has demonstrated that, academically, it is among
the top one half of one percent of public high schools in the United States.

£ WORLD REPORT
1\ (A Friday, December 5, 2008

usnews.,com
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BASIS Tucson was selected as one of America’s eight most noteworthy charter schools by the US
Department of Education’s Office of Innovation and Improvement in their first issue of “Successful
Charter Schools” in June, 2004, only six tears after its founding. Of the 8 charters in the report then
Secretary of Education Paige said in the preface “these schools were chosen after an exhaustive national
search, they were selected primarily because they have demonstrated success over time in boosting
student achievement.”

The goals we set for our students are entirely attainable. Every year BASIS students prove that we can
set the bar high in American secondary education and still see students succeed. The results our
students achieve are world-class, but they are not impossible to attain. This year, 124 BASIS Scottsdale
students took 390 AP exams. 94% of those 390 exams earned a passing score of 3 or higher. At BASIS
Tucson the numbers are similar: 83% of the 449 AP exams taken there earned a score of 3 or higher.
(Please see Appendix C.1 for AP exam results for all three BASIS schools.) Both of these schools also
maintained a near-perfect record in all subjects on the AIMS tests, and both schools ensured every
graduate passed at least one AP exam during high school. BASIS Oro Valley, in its first year of operation,
earned a pass rate on the AIMS test that exceeded 90%, and far exceeded the state average in every
subject. (Please see Appendix C.1 for AIMS results for all three BASIS schools.) The numbers tell the
story: BASIS students are reaching and exceeding all of the goals we set for them.

As the data quoted above and in Attachment 23 clearly shows, BASIS schools perform at a very high
level. In fact, there is not a single BASIS school that could be reasonably considered to be
underperforming. BASIS Oro Valley, which opened its doors in 2010, is the lowest performing school for
which we have collected data. Even as the lowest performing school in the organization, BASIS Oro
Valley students still outscored their peers at other, non-BASIS schools on the state-mandated AIMS
exams last year:

BASIS Oro Valley AIMS Pass Rates, 2011

MATH READING

BASIS Oro Valle Arizona Pass BASIS Oro Valley  Arizona Pass
GRADE Pass Rate (%) y Rate (%) GRADE b ss Rate (%) Rate (%)
5 95 63 5 98 79
6 94 59
7 97 61 Bro
8 99 54 GRADE Vall 2@ ce Arizonafass
HS 94 60 HS Rat&d%) rate;gro)
8 96 63
HS 100 49
BASIS Oro Arizona Pass
GRADE Valley Pass Rate (%)
Rate (%)
5 90 55
6 91 56
7 97 53
HS 100 68
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BASIS Oro Valley AIMS Exceeds Rates, 2011

MATH

Arizona
GRADE DASISOroValley g, /0 ods Rate

Exceeds Rate (%) (%)
5 59 21
6 69 27
7 71 24
8 70 19
HS 75 21

Arizona
GRADE BASIS Oro Vallfy Exceeds Rate
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5 17 10
6 22 9

7 33 12
8 35 8

HS 44 12

WRITING

BASIS Oro Arizona Exceeds
GRADE Valley Exceeds Rate (%)
Rate (%)
5 39 5
6 35 7
7 37 6
HS 31 5

SCIENCE

BASIS Oro Arizona Exceeds
GRADE Valley Exceeds Rate (%)
Rate (%) ’
8 82 39
HS 100 24

We do not have any contracts with charter schools that have been terminated by either the organization
or the school. We also have not had any charter revocation, non-renewals, shortened or conditional
renewals, or withdrawal non-openings. Finally, BASIS schools have not experienced any performance
deficiencies or compliance violations that have led to formal authorizer intervention within any school

year.

Summary

One of America’s most enduring traditions has been the practice of education as an equalizer. No
matter a child’s economic background, geographic location, culture or ethnicity, a quality education
along with hard work provides the opportunity to become successful in life. Freely available quality
education breaks down the barriers of poverty and the self-fulfilling prophesy of low expectations by
preparing students to compete in a global economy. This tradition is threatened, however, as long as our
schools are not successful. The first step in reversing the downward trend American education now
faces is to encourage innovation in schools. BASIS was founded to raise academic expectations, student
achievement, and academic accountability. This model, proven successful in Arizona by all available
measures, demonstrates that true academic innovation is possible and that educational excellence can
be replicated to fit the diverse needs of students. We look forward to bringing our internationally
benchmarked curriculum to Indiana and to the students of Indianapolis.

20 | BASIS Indianapolis




Attachment 2: Head of School/Principal Candidate Information

This attachment is not applicable to BASIS Indianapolis at this time, as we have not yet identified a
candidate for Head of School. As we state in the application itself, we expect to hire a full-time Head of
School shortly after we are awarded a charter. The BSI New Schools Development Department has
already begun searching for candidates. Please see the application section entitled “School Leadership
and Leadership Team” on page 6 for more information about our Head of School Hiring Process.



Attachment 3: School Administrator Information

This attachment is not applicable to BASIS Indianapolis at this time, as we have not yet identified
candidates for school administrators. As we state in the application itself, we expect to hire a full-time
Head of School shortly after we are awarded a charter, and we will hire a Head of Operations and School
Director well before the start of school. The BSI New Schools Development Department has already
begun searching for candidates to fill these positions. Please see the application section entitled “School

Leadership and Leadership Team” on page 6 for more information about our school administrator hiring
process.



Attachment 7: Enrollment Policy

Enrollment Policy

Enrollment at BASIS Indianapolis will follow the same procedures in place at all BASIS schools. There is
an open enrollment period during which interested parties may submit a registration packet. When a
parent/guardian submits a registration packet with the school, their child is placed in the pool of Pre-
Registered students. If there are more students pre-registered than there are spaces available in the
school, a lottery is performed. We anticipate holding the lottery for BASIS Indianapolis on March 15,
2012 for the first year, then no later than May 31" each year thereafter. Students with registration
preferences will be registered before the lottery takes place. If a student’s lottery number is selected,
he/she is immediately registered.

If a student’s registration packet is not selected in the lottery, he/she is placed on the Waiting List.
Registration packets received after the open registration deadline will be placed at the end of the
Waiting List. Waiting List positions for late submissions are based on the date of the packet’s arrival.

If, upon the open registration deadline, the school receives fewer registration packets than there are
spaces available, all students who turned in a registration packet by the deadline are registered and the
Extended Registration period begins. Once all of the available spaces are filled during the Extended
Registration period, the Waiting List opens and students are assigned positions according to the date
they submit their registration packet.

Whenever a registration spot opens due to a registration withdrawal, the student whose name is first on
the Waiting List receives a Registration Confirmation Form. The student’s parent/guardians are then
required to submit this form by the stated deadline. If they accept the position and return the
Registration Confirmation Form, the student is immediately enrolled. If the parent/guardians decline the
registration opportunity or miss the stated deadline, the vacant registration spot goes to the next
student on the Waiting List.



Attachment 8: Student Discipline Policy

In order to accurately depict our Student Discipline policy at BASIS Fort Collins, we have included several
key sections from the Parent-Student Handbook at an operational BASIS campus. Although the voice of
the handbook is somewhat different than the voice of this application, we feel the immediacy of
including the actual documents we use is essential to providing a thorough review of our policies.

The BASIS Disciplinary philosophy is based on five key principles of behavior each member of the
community agrees to follow. These principles are based on respect for each individual’s right to be
educated in a safe environment and the strong belief that academic greatness demands social greatness
as well. The following is the Code of Conduct BASIS developed with these factors in mind:

Code of Conduct: 5 Key Principles of Behavior

1. Promote respect for fellow students and staff members: All students are expected and required to
behave in a respectful manner toward themselves, other students, staff, and property. In particular, the
school adheres to a zero tolerance policy toward any language or behavior that intimidates, belittles, or
causes physical or emotional injury to others.

2. Promote respect for all individuals: BASIS is fortunate to have a very diverse student population from
a variety of ethnic, cultural, and religious backgrounds. The school strives to provide an environment
where all students feel comfortable and thrive. For this reason, certain behaviors are strictly prohibited
on school premises. These include, but are not limited to, the use of derogatory statements in reference
to race, sexuality, ethnicity, culture, or religious background.

3. Promote individual responsibility and responsibility for community: Each student will be held
individually responsible for his/her own language and actions. This responsibility extends to any
knowledge of misconduct by other students. Staff members will not tolerate bullying or cheating and
neither should students. If students are aware of misconduct by another student, it is their responsibility
to inform a staff member. Withholding such information is considered a Discipline Violation. Staff
members make every effort to ensure the confidentiality of any student who reports misconduct by a
classmate, and they invoke appropriate sanctions against any student who responds to anotherin a
retaliatory manner.

4. Provide a safe environment for students: It is the responsibility of all students to immediately inform a
staff member about any possible threat to student or staff safety, health, or property they may observe
or of which they may have knowledge. Withholding such information is considered a Discipline
Violation.

5. Provide a disruption-free educational environment. No BASIS student will be allowed to disrupt
another student’s learning. Classroom disruptions of any kind may be considered Discipline Violations.

General Rules
o Compliance with all federal, state, and local laws;

o No possession of any kind of weapon or any item simulating a weapon;



o No possession, use, or attendance under the influence of tobacco products, drugs, unauthorized
prescription medication, alcohol, or any other dangerous, illegal, or controlled substance;

o No physical aggression against or abuse of persons or property (including abuse of
Communication Journal—e.g., no removing of entries or pages);

o No sexual advances, derogatory or suggestive comments about one’s own or another
individual’s sexual orientation;

o No display of sexually suggestive objects or pictures;

o No public display of intimate affection (e.g., hugging, kissing, lap-sitting);

o No use of profanity or verbal abuse of any persons;

o No harassment or bullying;

o No gum chewing is permitted anywhere on school premises;

o No possession or unauthorized use of matches or lighters and explosive materials;

o Compliance with all written rules and procedures provided and/or posted throughout the
school’s premises including the emergency procedures;

o Compliance with verbal directions of staff members;
o Arrival at class or at any required school activity on time and appropriately equipped;
o Attendance at all scheduled classes and all required school activities;

o Reporting immediately to school personnel another school community member’s actions and/or
words believed to violate the school’s disciplinary policy;

o Students are permitted to sell products on school grounds ONLY as a part of the school program.

To ensure student safety and an environment conducive to learning, staff members are authorized to
use reasonable physical force in self-defense, defense of others, and defense of property. Staff members
are also authorized to use reasonable physical force in cases where, after repeated verbal warnings, a
student refuses to obey instructions in accordance with the school’s Discipline Policy.

Classroom Rules

To enable students to master subject content, the classroom environment must be conducive to
learning. Teachers will set standards for student behavior in their classrooms as well as consequences
for violating those standards. Specific classroom rules have to be compatible with all school policies and
procedures are communicated to students and parents/guardians via class syllabi during the first week
of school. In all classrooms, students must adhere to the following general rules:



o No disruption of another student’s education;
o No eating, drinking (other than water), or chewing anything, including gum;
o No passing notes;

o All electronic devices (including, but not limited to, games, radios, portable music players, cell
phones, and pagers) must be switched off and out of sight during all academic, Extracurricular
and auxiliary programs.

Dress Code Rules

The school dress code is designed to promote respect for each student as an individual capable of
exercising discretion and making responsible choices for his/her attire. All students must wear clothing
that is appropriate to an academic environment and that adheres to the following guidelines:

o No clothing may be worn that creates a distraction for other students (e.g., no exposed midriffs,
abdomens, buttocks; no provocative necklines);

o No clothing may be worn that features offensive language, racial or ethnic statements,
references to tobacco, drugs, alcohol or gangs, or wording/graphics that are suggestive of sexual
or other inappropriate behavior;

o No clothing or footwear may be worn that may threaten the safety or health of the wearer or
other students (e.g., no shoes with wheels in the soles, no excessively high platform shoes, etc.).

Staff members determine whether a student’s attire complies with the school dress code and report any
dress code violations to the School Director. Initial infractions may be dealt with by requiring the
student to turn clothing inside out, requesting that a parent/guardian deliver suitable replacement
clothing to the school, confiscating nonessential items such as hats, or other appropriate measures.
Repeated dress code violations may be treated as a serious Discipline Violation.

Material Brought to School Rules

The school strongly discourages students from bringing any valuables to school. This includes, but is not
limited to: jewelry, card games, electronic devices (game systems, radios, portable music players, mobile
phones, etc.), or similar items. The school disclaims any liability for the loss, damage, or theft of such
items. Use of any electronic device, including mobile phones, during academic, Extracurricular, and
auxiliary programs is prohibited. During classes, all electronic devices must be switched off and out of
sight. Personal items, print media, or electronic media brought to school may not contain nudity,
profanity, or excessively violent or sexual content. Breach of this rule will result in confiscation of the
item and may be considered a major Discipline Violation. Each teacher reserves the right to allow or
disallow students’ personal computers in the classroom.



Response to Physical Aggression, Physical Abuses of Persons or Property, Verbal Aggression, or Verbal

Abuses of Persons Rules

Students must immediately report any aggressive behavior to the nearest staff member. The staff
member then must assess the seriousness of the problem, stop the offensive behavior, and/or derive
disciplinary consequences for such behavior.

If a student is the victim of physical aggression, he/she may use force to defend him/herself only if it is
necessary to prevent the offender from further aggression. The School Director has the sole authority to
decide if an aggressive defense is considered necessary or if the student could have diffused the
situation by another means (calling a staff member, walking away, etc.). If a student observes aggression
against property, he/she may try to stop this behavior only if this property damage might put others in
immediate physical danger. In any other case, it is a Discipline Violation for students to engage in any
restraining, retaliatory or vengeful behavior.

During class, if a student makes comments deemed offensive or inappropriate, the teacher will assess
the seriousness of the problem, stop the offensive behavior, and/or derive disciplinary consequences for
such behavior.

Students engaging in private conversation on school grounds, or at a school sponsored event, must
adhere to BASIS rules of good behavior. If someone involved in the conversation (or someone
overhearing the conversation) deems it to be inappropriate or offensive, the student must stop that
conversation at once. At no time may a student intimidate another party in order to prevent him/her
from openly expressing his/her dislike of a conversation topic. Similarly, if the conversation continues
after a student has expressed dislike for it, then the offense must immediately be reported to office
staff. At no point may an offended student engage in a verbal or physical dispute with the offender, no
matter how offensive the topic of conversation. The staff member summoned is responsible for
assessing the seriousness of the problem, stopping the offensive behavior, and/or deriving disciplinary
consequences for such behavior.

Staff members will make every effort to ensure the confidentiality of any student who reports
misconduct by a classmate. Sanctions may be invoked for retaliatory offenses, irrespective of the cause.

Harassment and Bullying Prevention Rules

BASIS employs the following definition for harassment and bullying: systematic and/or continued
unwanted and annoying actions by a person or group, including threats and demands. This behavior
includes but is not limited to verbal, physical, or sexual harassment.

Any form of harassment and bullying is strictly prohibited and will result in severe disciplinary
consequences. Behavior must meet these criteria to be defined as harassment and bullying:

o Systematic and/or continued: a first offense qualifies as physical or verbal abuse, not
harassment, and the responsible student(s) will receive a Discipline Violation. If the
offenses continue, severe disciplinary consequences may ensue.



o Unwanted and annoying: the victim has to inform a staff member of the first offense
and that he/she finds the offense annoying or unwanted. Therefore, the staff member
has an opportunity to warn and/or discipline the perpetrator after the first violation.

Suspected, observed or experienced harassment or bullying must be immediately reported to a staff
member. Students who do not report harassment or bullying may be subject to a Discipline Violation.
The matter will be thoroughly investigated, and any student determined to have participated in
harassment and bullying may be subject to disciplinary action. Staff members will make every effort to
ensure the confidentiality of any student who reports misconduct by a classmate, and will invoke
appropriate sanctions against any student who responds to another in a retaliatory manner.

Consequences of a Discipline Violation may include, but are not limited to, the following disciplinary

actions:

Non-Suspension Disciplinary Actions

Classroom Discipline: Each teacher has his/her own classroom discipline procedure, which is in
accordance with BASIS school policies. These procedures are clearly defined in course syllabi.

Exclusion: The student is temporarily (a maximum of 50 minutes per day) excluded from the classroom,
cafeteria, hallway, or other school premises, due to a Discipline Violation. The student will spend an
assigned time in the designated area, under the supervision of a staff member. During this time, the
student may be required to work on additional academic tasks or school service activities (usually
activities related to the upkeep and maintenance of the school’s premises). It is the student’s duty to
inform the staff member that he/she was previously excluded from any activities during the same day.
Every exclusion is considered an Office Referral. Failure to follow instructions during exclusion may be
considered a serious Discipline Violation.

Office Referrals: The student is required to immediately (or in the time interval indicated by a staff
member) report to the school office for disciplinary action. Prior to disciplinary action, the staff member
referring the student to the office will verbally inform the office or complete a Discipline Violation
Report describing the event. The School Director will then:

- Inform the student of the school policies he/she violated;

- Invite the student to explain his/her understanding of the event and instruct him/her on
disciplinary due process;

- Decide the remedy and/or the disciplinary consequences:

= Warning — Information about consequences in the case of next violation and
possible request to produce verbal or written (letter or essay) explanation. There is
no requirement to inform the parent about this action.



=  Minor consequences — Include but are not limited to: Warning plus additional
Exclusion for more than one school period, request to perform additional academic
or school service activities during Exclusion or before or after school the next school
day, one time Exclusion from an Extracurricular activity; written notice regarding the
Discipline Violation in the Communication Journal; requirement to obtain a parent
signature by the next school day. Failure to follow instructions or obtain the
signature results in major discipline consequence.

=  Major consequences — Short Term Suspension (see below).

= Severe consequences — Long Term Suspension or Expulsion (see below).

Suspension and Other Disciplinary Actions

Short-Term Suspension (1-9 school days): The student must remain away from school premises, classes,
and all other school activities. Short-Term Suspension does not excuse the student from academic work
required during the term of suspension. Suspended students must make up missed assignments to
receive credit for them. The School Director designates a student’s classmate to collect assignments for
the student during the Short-Term Suspension. This material will be available for the parent/guardian of
the suspended student to collect. The parent/guardian may call the school office to verify that there is
new material available to be collected and to determine the time the material will be available. Upon
returning to school the student is required to deliver all finished assignments he/she received during the
suspension and coordinate any make-up tests or quizzes with the teacher of each subject. The student
must make up these tests/quizzes on the date specified by each teacher.

When the School Director decides to impose Short-Term Suspension, a suspended student’s
parent/guardian will be informed of the suspension by telephone, in writing, or in person. The
parent/guardian may be required to remove his/her child from the school immediately, or the School
Director may postpone the start of suspension to the next day (or a later date). The School Director may
also postpone the final decision regarding the length of suspension due to a pending incident
investigation. The school reserves the right to suspend, without prejudice, any student subject to such
investigation. A student suspended pending the result of a disciplinary investigation will be supported in
his/her efforts to keep up with homework assignments and will be allowed credit for made-up work. If a
student is subsequently found not guilty of a Discipline Violation, or the violation proves to be
significantly less serious than suspected, he/she will be allowed an opportunity to make up and receive
credit for missed assignments; however, there will be no other compensation (e.g. private tutoring,
more than regular additional time for make-up work, etc.) for the time spent on suspension during the
investigation.

Once the incident investigation is completed, a conference between the School Director and the
parent/guardian will be required before the student is allowed to return to school.



Long-Term Suspension (At least 10 school days): The student must remain away from school premises,
classes, and all other school activities for a period of at least 10 school days. Long-Term Suspension does
not excuse the student from academic work assigned during the term of suspension. The School Director
designates a student’s classmate to collect assignments for the student during the Long-Term
Suspension. To receive credit for assignments missed during a Long-Term Suspension, students
suspended at least 10 school days will be required to complete missed assignments after returning to
school. The student must follow the same procedure to secure make-up assignments as he/she would
for a Short-Term Suspension. The student might be required to come to school after regular hours to sit
exams and quizzes during his/her Long-Term Suspension.

Prior to any Long-Term Suspension, the student is placed on Short-Term Suspension and the same rules
described in the Short-Term Suspension paragraph above are invoked. During this time the School
Director conducts an investigation of the incident. Once the incident investigation is complete, a
conference between the School Director and the parent/guardian will be required before the student is
allowed to return to school. The investigation of the incident may also result in the School Director’s
recommendation to expel the student.

Expulsion: BASIS will permanently withdraw the student’s privilege of attending the school. A student
Expulsion is initiated at the recommendation of the School Director and requires the approval of the
BASIS School Board. Until the School Board meets and makes its final determination, the student and
school will follow the procedures implemented for a Long-Term Suspension. The student’s
parent/guardian shall receive written notification of the recommendation for Expulsion and shall be
invited to attend the School Board meeting, at which the final determination will be made.

Contact of Local Law Enforcement Authorities: If the student is considered an immediate threat to
himself/herself or others, or engages in conduct required by the law to be reported to the Law
Enforcement Authorities, the staff member registering the offense notifies the School Director. It is the
responsibility of the School Director to contact the local law enforcement.

Possible Disciplinary Decisions

Disciplinary decisions in each individual case will be made at the discretion of the School Director. These
disciplinary decisions will depend upon the nature and severity of the infraction and other pertinent
circumstances. The most common type of Discipline Violation is disruptive behavior in the classroom.
While such misconduct is generally considered relatively minor, repeated violations may be damaging to
the classroom environment and may interfere with the learning process. Therefore, repeated “minor”
infractions may eventually lead to substantial consequences such as Office Referrals and Short-Term
Suspensions.

The Head of School issues disciplinary guidelines to the School Director. These guidelines are available to
the students and parents during the disciplinary decision process. It is important to note that these are
NOT mandatory consequences, and the School Director may in any case decide more lenient or more
severe consequences.



Disciplinary Due Process Procedures

Whenever a student is to receive disciplinary consequence he/she can ask to be brought to the school
office, ask the School Director to contact his/her parent/guardian, and ask to be picked up to avoid any
immediate punishment. If the parent/guardian does not honor the student’s request in reasonable time,
or the parent/guardian cannot be contacted in a reasonable time, the Disciplinary process continues.
Determining what qualifies as a reasonable time is up to the School Director’s discretion.

Whenever a staff member makes a decision about a students’ Exclusion or the School Director decides
to impose a Warning or Minor Discipline consequence, the decision is final and there is no due process
to reverse this decision. The parent/guardian may ask the School Director for further explanation of this
decision. The parent/guardian will then receive the explanation within 10 school days.

Whenever the School Director imposes a Short-Term Suspension or Long-Term Suspension, the
parent/guardian has an opportunity to discuss the incident and the disciplinary decision with the School
Director during the mandated meeting before the student returns to school. If the parent/guardian does
not support the School Director’s decision, he/she may write (e-mail) his/her objections and send them
to the School Director. The School Director must then forward this letter to the Head of School. The
parent/guardian will receive a response within 10 school days, but during this time the School Director’s
decision holds. If the Head of School supports the School Director’s decision, the decision is final. There
is no further due process within the School Administration.

If the parent/guardian believes the school violated any charter school regulations, State or Federal laws,
or any other relevant regulation, he/she should bring it to the school’s attention and may directly
contact the governing authority.

Procedures for handling Discipline Violations specific to students with disabilities are contained in the
school’s Special Education Policies and Procedures Manual. Parents/Guardians of students with
disabilities may request a copy. A disabled student is one who has been classified as disabled pursuant
to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and/or the
Americans with Disabilities Act.

Student Disciplinary Records

The School Director will make reasonable efforts to thoroughly investigate, accurately document, and
fairly adjudicate student misconduct. Disciplinary records related to the current school year will be
maintained by the School Director in the student’s discipline file. The student’s disciplinary file, adjusted
to comply with Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), will be made available for inspection
by parents/guardians upon request. In compliance with FERPA, all documents with information about
any other students involved in the disciplinary event will be removed from the file prior to such
inspection. The student’s disciplinary file, including disciplinary information related to the current school
year, is available for inspection only if the request is made before the end of the school year during
which the Discipline Violation occurred.



All serious discipline issues must be reported to the Arizona Department of Education. When responding
to requests for student disciplinary records and information from law enforcement agencies or court
officials, the school will follow procedures mandated by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA).

Standard Due Process

A parent/guardian may request, in writing, either of the following: that the School Director reviews any
decision made by any staff member; that the Head of School reviews any decision made by the School
Director. Decisions made by the Head of School are considered final. The parent/guardian will receive a
written response to his/her request within 20 school days. If the request is related to Long-Term
Suspension or Expulsion, the due process procedures outlined above will be followed. In any other case,
if the Head of School supports the decision of the School Director, this response is final; there is no
further due process within the School Administration or the School Board.



’Aﬂochment 9: Articles of Incorporation Board Bylaws and Pblicies

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
" (an Arizona Nonprofit Organization)

/

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned incorporator, whose mailing address appears

" beneath his name, hereby adopts. the following Articles of Incorporation for the

.purpoéé of forming a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of
Arizona. |

ARTICLE |

NAME

The name of this corporation is and shall be BASIS SCHOOL, INC.,
(hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation”).

ARTICLE 1l

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The known place of business of this Corporation shall initially be 6470 N.
Calle de Calipso, Tucson, Pima County, Arizona, 85718, but it may establish
other principal places of business and other offices at such other places, either

—~. within or without the State of Arizona, as the Board of Directors may from time

~——

to time determine..

{
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ARTICLE 1ll
PURPOSES

This Corporation is organized and shall be operated as a nonprofit
corporation solely and exclusively for the promotion of social welfare, and
specifically for the conducting of any and all lawful affairs for which
corporations may be incorporated. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing or the character of the affairs to be conducted by the corporation in
the future, the corporation initially shall conduct the following business: Charter

Middle Schoaol.

Consistent with the foregoing purposes and subject to all other
limitations, restrictions and prohibitions set forth in these Articles, this
Corporation shall have all the powers specified in Arizona Revised Statutes
Section 10-2301 et seq., and as shall later be repealed and renumbered of the

| ~rizona Revised Statutes, as amended from time to time, and to do all and.

gvery thing necessary, suitable and proper for the accomplishment of the
purposes or attainment of the objects hereinabove set forth either alone orin
‘association with other individuals, corporations or partnerships, including
federal, state, county and municipal bodies and authorities; and, in general, to
do and perform such acts and transact such business in connection with the
foregoing objects not inconsistent with law; provided, however, that the
Corporation shall not perform any act or transact any business that will
jeopardize the tax exempt status of the corporation under Section 501 of the
internal Revenue Code and its regulations as such Section and regulations now
exist or may hereafter be amended or under corresponding laws and regulations

hereafter adopted.

ARTICLE IV

PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES

No primary or substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be
participation in or intervention in (including the publishing or distributing of



statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any
' candidate for public office. 4

ARTICLE V -
TERM

The time for the commencement of this Corporation shall be the date of
the filing of these Articles of Incorporation as required by law, and the term of
its corporate existence shall be perpetual.

ARTICLE VI

STOCK

'A‘_ This Corporation shall be a nonprofit corporation and shall have no stock,

~and no dividends or pecuniary profits shall be declared or paid to the directors

" _hereof or to any other private individual. All the earnings and property of the
Corporation shall be used to further the purposes and objects of the Corporation
as set forth in ARTICLE lil. Nothing contained herein, however, shall prohibit
payments by the Corporation to- directors or members as reasonable
compensation for services rendered to the Corporation.

ARTICLE VII

INDEMNIFICATION

The directors, officers and members of the Corporation shall not be
mdlvxdually liable for the Corporatlon s debts or other liabilities. The private
property of such individuals shall be exempt from any corporate debts or
liabilities. A director of the Corporation shall 'not be personally liable to the
Corporation or its members, if any, for monetary damages for breach of
fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability (i) for any breach of the
director's duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its members if any, (ii} for acts

-~ or omissions not in good faith or which mvolve intentional misconduct or a



knowing violation of law, (i} under Section 10-2328, et seq., where applicable,
of the Arizona Revised Statutes, or (iv) -for any transaction from which the
director derived any improper personal benefit. If the Arizona Revised Statutes

“are hereafter amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or

limiting the personal liability of directors, then the liability of a director of the
Corporation shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the
Arizona Revised Statutes, as so amended. Any repeal or modification of this
Article shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director of the
Corporation existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE Vil

INCORPORATOR

The names and addresses of the incorporator of the Corporation is:

Thomas R. Aguilera, Esg.’
Monroe & Associates, P.C.
6280 E. Pima, Ste. 105

Tucson, AZ 85712,

. All powers, duties and responsibilities of the incorporator shall cease on
the date and at the time of the convening of the organizational meeting of the
Board of Directors. ' . :

ARTICLE IX

DIRECTORS

The control and management of the affairs of the Corporation shall be
vested in a Board of Directors. The names and addresses of those selected to
serve as directors, beginning with the incorporation of this Corporation and until
the second annual meeting of the corporation or until their successors shall be
elected and qualified, are: '

Olga Vyborna Block
6470 N. Calle de Calipso
Tucson, AZ 85718



N

Y

Michae!l Kent Block
6470 N. Calle de Calipso
Tucson, AZ 85718

Lewis C. Solmen

323 San Vicente Blvd., #14
Santa Monica, CA 90402

ARTICLE X

FISCAL YEAR'

The fiscal year for this Corporation shall be DECEMBER 31st, unless
otherwise fixed by a resolution of the Board of Directors. '

ARTICLE Xl

DISSOLUTION

~ No person shall possess any property right in or to the property or assets
of the Corporation. Upon dissolution of this Corporation as provided in the
Bylaws, all assets remaining after payment of any outstanding liabilities shall be
distributed exclusively to charltable, religious, educational or scientific
organizations which would then quahfy under the appropriate provisions and
subsections of Section 501{(c) of the Internal Revenue Code and its regulations
as such Section and regulations now exist or may hereafter be amended, or
under corresponding laws and reguiatsons hereafter adopted and which
organizations have purposes and objects similar to those of the corporat(on all

‘determined in accordance with the Bylaws.

N

ARTICLE Xl

AMENDMENTS-

These Articles of Incorporation may be amended in the following manner:



(a) If there are members entitled to vote on the proposed
amendment, the Board of Directors shall adopt a
resolution setting forth the proposed amendment and
directing that it be submitted to a vote at a meeting of
those members, which may be either an annual or a
special meeting. Written notice setting forth the
proposed amendment or a summary of the changes to
be effected shall be given to each member entitled to
vote at the meeting within the time and in the manner
provided for giving of notice of meetings. The proposed
amendment may be adopted only by act of the
members.

(b)  If there are no members or ho members entitled to vote
on the proposed amendment, an amendment may be

adopted by act of the Board of Directors.

(c) Any number of amendments may be submitted and
voted upon at any one meeting.

- ARTICLE XIli

STATUTORY AGENT

This Corporation hereby appoints Thomas R. Aguilera, of Monroe &
Associates, P.C., 6280 E. Pima, Ste. 105, Tucson, Arizona, 85712, as its initial
statutory agent who has been a resident of this state for at least three (3)
years. All notices and processes, including service of summons, may be served
upon said statutory agent and, when so-served, shall be lawful, personal service
“upon this Corporation. The Board of Directors may, at any time, appoint another
agent for such purpose, and filing of such other appointment shall revoke this
or any other previous appointment of such agent. :



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, |, the undersigned incorporator, have hereunto
signed my name this 23rd day of March 1298. :

C\,

[

Thomas R Aguilera o
Monroe & Assocx P.C.
6280 E. Pima, Ste-—105

Tucson, AZ 8571 2

STATE OF ARIZONA )
' ) SS.

- COUNTY OF PIMA )

On this, the 23rd day of March 1998, before me THOMAS R. AGUILERA,
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing
instrument and acknowledged that he executed the same for the purposes

therein contamed

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 hersunto set my hand and official seal.

My Commission Expires:

2231001 e apm .
JEFF 5. WILLIAMS
= Notary Public - Arizona
TRA\tw - 03/23/98 : NS Pime County

My Comm. Sxires Dec 23, 2001

F:\CORP\BASIS\ARTICLE4.WPD



ACCEPTANCE OF STATUTORY AGENT

Thomas R. Aguilera_l, having been designated to act as statutory agent for
BASIS SCHOOL, INC., and having been a resident of ‘this state for at least three (3)
yvears, hereby consents to act in that capacity until he is removed, or submits his
resignation, in accordance wit'h applicable law.

DATED:

Thomas R. Ag

- Monroe & As ;

6280 E. Pima, Ste. 105
Tucson, AZ 85712
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TNTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

DISTRICT DIRECTOR

o, C. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 _
Employer Tdentificaticn Number:
Date: OV 1 8 ﬁga an DLN-BG 0908854
. ' ., 17053232021008
- BASIE SCHOOL, INC. . Contact Person: :
6740 CALLE DE CALIPSO " PO CUSTOMER SERVICE
TUCSON, AZ  85718-2083 Contact Telephone Number :
 {213) 894-228B5
Aempunting Period Ending:
\ecember-Bl
Form "99C Reguired:
yes
Addendum Applies:
no
Dear Applicant:

Based on information supplied, and assuming your operations will be as
gtated in your application for recognition of exemption, we have determined
you are exempt from federal income tax under section 501{a) of the Internal
Revenue Code as an organization described in section 501{e) (3).

We have further determined that you are not a private foundation within
the meaning of sectionm 503 (a). of the Code, because you are an organization
described in sections 509 (a) (1) and 170 (b} (1) (&) (id).

If your sources of support, Or Your DUTposes, character, or methed of
operation change, please let us know sc we can congider the effect of the
change on your exempt status and foundation status. In the case of an amend-
ment to your organizational document O bylaws, please send us a copy of the
amended document or bylaws. Also, -you should inform us of all changes in your
name or address. ' S ‘ '

As of January 1, 1984, you are liable for taxes under the Federal
Insurance Contributiens Act (social security taxes) on remuneration of $100
‘or more you pay to each of your employees during a calendar year. You are
not liable for the tax iwposed under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA).
- Bince you areypot .a private founddtion, you ars not subject. to the excise
itaxesﬁﬁh&gf¥dhaptgr?%ﬁ%pf*theTCode. “Béwever, Hf vou Hre involved in an excess
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®

BASIS SCHOOL, INC.

nemessarily qualify as deductible contributions, dgpending on the circum-
stances. .See Revenue Ruling €7-246, published in fumalative Bulletin 1867-2,
on page 104, which sets forth guidelines regarding the deductibility, as chaxi-
cable comtributions, of payments made by taxpayers for admission to or other .
participation in Fundraising activities for charity.

In the heading of this letter we have indicated whether you mist £ile Form
990, Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax. If Yes is indicated, you
are reguired to £ile Form 280 only if your gross receipts each year are
normally mere than $25,000. However, if you receive a Form 330 package in the
mail, please file the return even if you do net exceed the gross receipts test.
If you are not required to file, simply attach the label provided, check the
box in the heading to indicate that your annual gross receipts are normally
$25,000 or less, and sign the returm.

If a2 return is required, it must me filed by the 15th day of the fifth
mouth after the end of your anmual acceounting period. A penalty of 420 a day
is charged when a return is filed late, unless there is reasonable cause for
the delay. However, the maximumn penalty charged cannot axceed $10,000 or

5 percent of your gross receipts for the yeax, whichever is less. FOT .
organizations with gross receipts exceeding $1,000,000 in any year, the penalty
ig 4100 per day per return, unlesg there iz reasonable cause for the delay.

The maximum penalty for an organization with gross receipts exceeding
41,000,000 shall not exceed $50,000. This penalty may also be charged if a
return is not complete, 50 be sure your return iz complete before you file it.

.You are regulred to make your anpual return available for public -
inspectien for three years after the return is due. -You are also required
to make available @ coPY of your exemption applicatien, any supporting
dqcuments, and this exemption letter. Failure to make these documents :
available for public ingpection may subject you to & penalty of $20 per day
for each day there is 2 failure to comply (up to & meximum of $10,000 in the
case of an annual return).

You are not reguired to file federdl income tax returns unless you are .
subjeqt te the tax on unrelated business income vnder gaection 511 of the Code.
if you are subject to this tax, vou st file an income Lax return on Form
gg0-T, Exempt Organizaticn Business Ingome Tax Return. In this letter we are
not determining whether any of your present- or proposed activities are unre-
1ated trade or business as defined in section 513 of the Code.

vou need an-employer identification mumber even iﬁ\yéu have no employees.
1f an employer identification number was Rot entered on.your applicaticn, a :
aumber will be assigned to yoil and you will be advimed of it. please use that

number on all returns you file and in all correspondence with the Internal
Revenue Service. : ‘

fr accordance with section 508 (a) of the Code, the effective date of this

_determination letter ig March 24, 1398,

Letter 947 {DO/CE)



BASIS SCHOOL, INC.

If we have indicated in the heading of this Tetter that an addendum

applies, the enclosed

Because this Jlett
status and foundation

addendum is an integral part of this letter.

er could help rescive any guestions about your exempt
status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

If you have any guestions, please contact the person whose name and

telephone number are S

hown in the heading of this letter.

gincersly yours,

/4

g
District Director g

A

Letter 947 (DO/CG)




Attachment 10: Statement of Assurances

This form must be signed by the duly authorized representative of the applicant and submitted
with the Full Application. An application will be considered incomplete if it is not accompanied
by the Statement of Assurances form signed by the applicant’s authorized representative.

The charter school agrees to comply with all of the following provisions: (Read and
check)

\Z]{A resolution or motion has been adopted by the charter school applicant’s governing
body that authorizes the submission of this application, including all understanding
and assurances contained herein, directing and authorizing the applicant’s designated
representative to act in connection with the application and to provide such additional

information as required.

E{Recipients operate (or will operate if not yet open) a charter school in compliance with
all federal and state laws, including Indiana Charter Schools Law as described inall .

relevant sections of IC § 20-24.

3. Recipients will, for the life of the charter, participate in all data reporting and
evaluation activities as required by the Indiana Charter School Board (ICSB) and the
Indiana Department of Education. See in particular IC § 20-20-8-3 and relevant
sections of IC § 20-24.

Ez}.(ecipien’rs will comply with all relevant federal laws including, but not limited to, the
Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, and section 427

of the General Education Provision Act.

Dﬁacipients will comply with all provisions of the Non regulatory Guidance—Public
Charter Schools Program of the U.S. Department of Education, which includes the use
of a lottery for enrollment if the charter school is oversubscribed, as well as with
applicable Indiana law. See also relevant sections of IC § 20-24.

mcipients shall ensure that a student’s records, and, if applicable, a student’s
individualized education program as defined at 20 U.S.C. § 1401(14) of the Individuals

with Disabilities Education Act, will follow the student, in accordance with applicable
federal and state law.

‘Zﬁacipients will comply with all provisions of the No Child Left Behind Act, including
but not limited to, provisions on school prayer, the Boy Scouts of America Equal
Access Act, the Armed Forces Recruiter Access to Students and Student Recruiting
Information, the Unsafe School Choice Option, the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA) and assessments.

Mecipients will operate with the organizer serving in the capacity of fiscal agent for the
charter school and in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.

‘zymipients will at all imes maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage.

: 10. Recipients will indemnify and hold harmless the ICSB, the Indiana Department of
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Education, the State of Indiana, all school corporations providing funds to the charter
school (if applicable), and their officers, directors, agents and employees, and any
successors and assigns from any and all liability, cause of action, or other injury or
damage in any way relating to the charter school or its operation.

E(Recipients understand that the ICSB may revoke the charter if the ICSB deems that:
the recipient is not fulfilling the academic goals and/or fiscal management
responsibilities outlined in the charter.

I the under51gned am an auﬂlorlzed representatlve of the charter school apphcant and
do hereby certify that the information submitted in this application is accurate and true
to the best of my knowledge and belief. In addition, I do hereby certify to the assurances
contained above.

Date

10/24/))

Indiana Charter School Board 2011 Charter School RFP




SCHOOLS INC.

@ BASIS

11485 n 136M street
suite 109
scofisdale, az 85259

To Whom It May Concem:

This letter is being submitted in lieu of the Charter School Board Member Information
sheets. Members of the BS| Board of Directors are identified several times throughout
this application, and their resumes have been attached in twe different Attachments.
However, it is our understanding that the Board Member Information sheets refer to
school board members and not our corporate board. Since the school board will not
be finalized until ofter our charter has been awarded, we cannot complete this part of
the application.

We have attached a Resolution adopted by our corporate school board giving the BSI
New Schools Development Deparfment the authority to “conduct all activities
necessary 1o implement the Board's objective of establishing multiple new schools
each year." We have alse aftached a Resolution passed by the BASIS Peoria school
board, adopting the school missions statemend, which specaks 1o several of the
questions asked in the Charter School Board Member Information sheets. The BASIS
Indianapolis School Board will follow the same mission and visicn as the existing BASIS
school boards.

New School Development Manager
Octcber 28, 2011

D e T e N T Y PN Y T RN L R Ly R T Y T Y

mbeiscrosos BASIS BASIS BASIS BASIS BASIS  BASIS

CHANDLER FLAGSTAFF OROVALLEY PEORia  SCOTISDALE TUCSON



Attachment 16: Personnel Policy

This attachment is not applicable to BASIS Indianapolis, as all on-site faculty and staff members will be
leased to the school by BASIS Educational Group. BASIS Educational Group has its own comprehensive
personnel policy.

After BASIS Indianapolis is granted a charter, site-specific human resources documents will be created.



SCHOOLS INC.

@ BASIS

11485 n 136N street
suite 109
scoftsdale, oz 8525%

To Whom It May Concem:

Once the BASIS indianapolis School Beard is established, they will adopt their own
Code of Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policy. The School Board will be established
once BASIS Indianapolis is awarded a charter.

Until that fime, the BSI Board of Directors will set the ethical standard for school
govemance. The B3I Board of Direcfors' ethical standards are oullined in the section of
fhe application entitied Governing Board and are laid out in the Board's Bylaws and
Articles of Incorpaoration.

Sincerely, /
Paul Morrissey

New School Development Manager
October 28, 2011

------------------------ P T T L I T T T R Y Y Y RN R P RN Y]

www.basisschools.org BASIS BASIS BAS'S BAS'S BAS'S BASIS

CHANDLER FLAGSTAFF OROVALLEY PECORIA  SCGUTTSDALE TUCSON




Attachment 17: Head of School and Faculty Evaluation Tools

This attachment is not applicable to BASIS Indianapolis, as all on-site personnel are leased employees
from BASIS Educational Group. As we state in the application itself, BEG has a rigorous teacher and
administrator evaluation program which evaluates personnel on outputs rather than inputs. We agree
that holding employees, especially teachers, to a high standard is essential to the successful operation of
a charter school. BEG has developed a strong evaluation system which is built into the BASIS Best
Practices program, whereby every teacher and administrator is evaluated often, and BASIS Indianapolis
will utilize this expertise when evaluating staff.
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Attachment 18: Evidence of Support from Community Partners

To view this email as a weh page, go here,

~=|ndiana Department of Education

'\  SUPPORTING STUDENT SUCCESS

Indiana's Students Win Big!

[ndiana students beat Idaho by one-tenth
of a percent to capiure the Apangea i2
Math Challenge championship Monday

~ evening. The competition pitted Indiana
students against Idaho studenis to see
which state could complete the most
math problems using the Apangea online
tutoring program. Indiana's students
demonstrated a true commitment to
academic excellence by logging onto
computers well past school hours and on
weekends. Read more!

DON'T
MiSs 011

| FILE YOUR FAYSA

Inspiring Innovation and Ensuring Accountability

By Dale Chu, IDOE's Assistant Superintendent for Policy

We have received some inquiries regarding language in Senate
Bill 1 that would allow charter schools to hire unlicensed teachers
{the 50% provision). This portion of SB 1 has also caused some
confusion, so we thought it would be helpful fo provide some
additional context.

Some natfionally-recognized, high-performing charter sponsors
currently operating in other states are interested in sponsoring
schools in Indiana, but they will not come to our state unless we
offer them this flexibility (BASIS is one example, and they have
achieved great results. Read more about BASIS at;

hitp://www . basisschools.org/bsifindex.php .) These sponsors

often hire content-specific experts directly from the field and
provide them with rigorous, job-embedded professional
development, ongoing feedback, coaching, and support.
Mareover, the proposed legislation would require these experts to
hold a bachelor's degree in that content area and have at least a
3.0 GPA on 2 4.0 scale.

Charter schools are not the only settings that utilize non-
traditional teachers. Already in Indiana's public schools, career
and technical education programs use this type of non-certified
expertise all the time. For example, we currently trust expert
electricians to equip students with the knowledge and skills they
need if they want to pursue a career in this sector. Imagine the
potential benefit to students if a scientist or an engineer can come
to the classroom to teach biology or physics or geometry.
Granted, content knowledge alone does not guarantee a great
teacher; however, with the right training and ongoing support,
these individuals have the potential to be extremely successful.
With our students needs top of mind, we want to encourage
highly-skilled adults to fransition to the teaching profession, and
the department has taken action to increase the number of
alternative teacher certification programs available to talented
adults hoping to enter our classrooms. (See REPA:
hitp:/Awww.doe.in. gov/news/2009/07-July/REPA hfmb).

@ | BY MARCH 101,
» = | VISIF EAFSA.GOV

] .ou‘T... |

FAFSA Deadline Fast Approaching!

The deadline for students seeking to file
the Free Application for Federal Student
Aid (FAFSA) is March 10th. Make sure
your students don't miss out! Visit

www.cashforcollegeindiana.org for

http://view.exacttarget.com/?j=fe671572716104757417&m=1ef31073726d01 &1s=fdf012...

Some additional context often lost in this discussion is that our
legislative agenda calls for charter schools {o be held to an
extremely high level of accountability - higher, even, than
traditional public schools. Increased accountability acts as a
safeguard to ensure the 50 percent provision does not reduce the
quality of instruction students receive. Because charter schools
are public schools, their teachers will be evaluated in the same
way, with the same rewards and consequences, and schools will
receive A-F lefter grades. If a charter school receives a D or F for
three consecutive years and the school has been in operation for
more than five, the state will intervene.

10/26/2011
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more information.

Connect Online!

e LA :ﬁ g

facebonk

011 424

Page 2 of 2

When charter schools were first conceived, the theory of action
was that being freed from some of the constraints and
bureaucracy would allow them to pilot new and innovative
practices. In some ways, the goal was to have charters act as a
research and development arm for traditional public schools,
That is, if a charter school came upaon a great practice, it could be
disseminated to their traditional public school cousins.,
Unfortunately, this goal has yet to come fo fruition in large part
because of (1) the lack of accountability for charters and (2) the
insistence among some to make charters fo low the exact same
rules and regulations of traditional public schools. Our legislative
agenda aims to correct these two shortcomings in order to truly
unleash the potential of charter schools as one piece of a

comprehensive education system for all students.

Shaking hands and discussing plans...

Indiana Department of Education

Dr. Bennett and IDOE staff members are continuing their marathon trek through the Hoosier State. Since August,
Dr. Bennett has personally met with over 7,000 educators during town halls and classroom visits. in that time

period, IDOE staffers have met with over 21,000 educaters. Since taking office Dr. Bennett has visited 154
schools in 55 counties.

This email was sent to: pallison@union.kl2.in.us

This email was sent by: Indiana Department of Education
Statehouse, Room 228, 200 West Washington Street Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

United States

We respect your right to privacy - view our policy

Manage Subscriptions | Update Profile | One-Click Unsubscribe
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Reform law gives charters leeway to hire
unlicensed teachers
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¥'s a coneept that has become popular in some education-reform circles
as a way to provide easter entry into teaching for people from other
careers. But it remains controversial, as sorne with fraditional eduecation
training challenge whether such feachers can be effective,

i

Kelly Geisleman, a
student teacher and senior aducancm major at Butler University, helps
fresliman DaMontae King in political science class at Shortridge
Magnet. (TBJ Photo/ Perry Reichanadter)

Under the Jaw, 10 percent of teachers can be nnlicensed at any cherter
school in 1he state. Charlers that want to go beyond that 1¢ pereent can
ask the state for a waiver 1o increase their percantage.

At a charter such as Indianapolis Meiropolitan High School, where
about half the staff comes to teaching through non-traditional routes,
that epens the door for more prolessionals such as engineers, physicians
and politicians to teach—and increases the teaching pipeline in much-
needed fields such as math and science.

T also adds experts, who proponents say bring a fresh perspective.

“Here’s someone who has done if, who has lived it,” said Indy Met
Superintendent Stott Bess, who returned to education afier leaving &
job teaching middle school math to work in IT for several years. “They
have the aptitude.”

His ast point remains a topic of debate.

Opponents uestion how effective teachers with subject-matter
expertise but little classroom experience are at conveying complicated
information to students. Thai’s particularly true, they say, when it
comes 10 reaching the challenging student populations many urban
charters serve.

“Teaching at a middie school or high school level isn’t about being an
expert in content. It’s about teaching kids to leamn,” said Alene Smith, a
22-vear educator who teaches social studies at Indianapolis Public
Schoals® Shortridge Magnet High School, “Some students are in foster

http://www.ibj.com/reform-effort-gives-charters-leeway-to-hire-unlicensed-teachers/PAR...
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care; others have emotional probiems. ... They don’t care if you have a
PhD.”

MORE FROM IBT

Law ties teacher pay to performance
Senate Bill § explained

IB.M's "Testing Reform" series

Bt as the state opens the door for more flexibility, it’s likely that some
schools will trade pedagogy for professiconals.

What's still unclear is how that will play out in classrooms.

Some studies show that certification status has at most a smell impact
on student test perfoimance. And there are schools where largely
unlicensed feaching staffs have produced outstanding resuits,

Looking west for inspiration

Before the new law, which takes effect July 1, all tcachers bad fo be
licensed by the state,

That doesn’t mean they all had a four-year education degree and
classroom experience, Those transitioning into the prefession can geta
so-called emeraency license to teach for three years before they’ze fully
licensed.

In those cases, the teachers are taking education courses while they're
teaching, and they eventually obtain their certification.

The new law allows charter schoolteachers who enter from a different
profiession 1o aveid certification aliogether. It would be up fo schoels 1o
provide mentorship and fraining 1o help teachers learn to handle the
classroom.

Other statés already provide that leaway on a broader scale, Arizona,
for example, doesn’t Tequire any teachers at its 511 charter schoals to be licensed.

As originally written, Indiana’s legislation would have allowed up to 50 percent of teachers af charters to
be unlicensed, but lawmakers scaled that back.

State education leaders, though, say providing such flexibility can enable teachers to be trained in ways
that makes them most effective.

“] want teachers to be consumers of preparation based on the needs of children,” said Indiana
Superiniendent of Public Instruction Tony Benneit. “That's going to be a major paradigm shift.”

Te prove the approach is effective, Bennett and other education leaders looiced to Arizena, where 2
charier schiool operator has been hiring mostly unticensed teachers and producing stellar results.

In fact, Indiana’s push for more license with licensing was driven by the desire to atiract the schools,
called BASIS, to Indiana. .

Just 24 percent of teachers al BASIS' three schools are licensed. The schools recruit teachers who have

strong knowledge in the areas they teach, Before they’re hired, prospective teachers must give a couple of

mock lessons to show their aptitude to convey what they know,

Once they’re on siaff, BASIS teachers go fhrough a week-long sutnmer program to lear basic teaching
methods. They also lave access to ongoing iraining throughout the year.

“We want 1o hire teachers who are experts, give them as much autonomy as possible, and hold them
accountable for results,” said Arwynn Gitroy, the school’s communications director, “It°s much more
difficult to leam a subject ihan it i§ 10 convey something you know to students.”

Those who ieach education agree subject-area knowledge is important, but leaming how (o communicate
it to students is equally critical.

“Having content kmowledge alone is not sufficient to be an effective teacher,” said 1.indan Hill, dean of
{he School of Education at Marian University. *You've got to be a manager of group psychology. A
_teacher has 1o convince 20 to 40 students every day they want to be in that classroomm.”

Teacher perspectives

New teachers from both raditional and alternative backerounds say they’ve learned how to do that
mostly through classroom experience.

http://www.ibj.com/reform-cffort-gives-charters-leeway-to-hire-unlicensed-teachers/PAR...
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Eric Nentrup began teaching at Indy Met in Augnst 2002 after seven months of cowses in a transiticn-to-
{eaching program at Indiana Westeyan University.

Nentrup, who entered the field after running his own video production company and working in

marketing, is still taking those classes. But he said wliat prepared him most for Lis own classroom was a
semester-Tong stint teaching computer graphics through a vacational program at Columbus North High
School in 2004,

L k Teacher Bric Nentrup makes sure his
students have 1umed in their homework. He became a teacher after working in marketing and video
production, {IBT Photo/ Perry Reichanadter)

Tt was there that hie discovered so-called project-based learnintg, which minfmizes lecture time and lets
studenis collaborale to solve problems—-an approach he employs frequently in Lis junior Amencﬂn
tustory/htelaiusc class at Indy Met.

For a recent project, Nentrup divided students into groups to research a citys growth during the Industrial
Revolution. He assigned student leaders—whom he called “mayors” of those eities—to guide the groups.

“f gm pushing against the notion that students come in on autopilot,” said Nentrup, who views his
classroom as a creative agency in which his students are employed with carrying out projects. “l’sa...
shift to come into the classroom and have your teacher teach you like a supervisor.”

Nentrup has a casual approach with students, rewarding good work with fist bumps and encouraging
them to use Japtops and iPads to do Tesearch, sometimes at the risk of losing them to YouTube cr Twitier.
Every day is alesson in how 1o effectively employ that phifosophy. Sometimes, be has najor
breakthroughs.

About a month age, Nentrup got fed up with students” persistent disruptive behavior in one of his classes.
Instead of scolding them, he lefi the classroom and sat in a chair right outside the door.

Gradually, his students followed, and e tald them fo putl up a chair if they were interested in learming.
Since then, he said, their cooperation has been sigmificantly better.

“It was one of those halcyon clear moments,” Nentruyp said, “T realized it wasn’t about classroom
management. It was about human leadership.”

What would have been the best preparation for 1eaching, Nentrup said, is not more ecademic coursewerk
but time spent as an assistant fo a seasoned teacher.

Such ¢lassroom leamning has been a core component in preparing Kelly Geisleman, a senior education
major at Butler University who is completing her last semester of student teaching at Shortridge Magnet.

Geisleman, whese project-based teaching style and friendly interaction with students is similar to

Nentrup’s, said her coursework in teaching methods helped her in the classroom. But what was most
critical, she said, was time in the seven classrooms where she’s either observed or taupht since freshman

year.

Even with that experience, Geisleman said, figuring out how to run a classroom is hard, and she bas a
fough time imagining how difficult it would be if she were thrown in without training.

Smitly, the 22-year teacher supervising Geijsleman, said leamning skills such as how o command students’
respect takes years of experience.

"That was ebvious one moming during Geisleman’s class when a group of sophemores was working in
" groups to select juries from lists of hypothetical characters. A pair of students who weren’t engaged in the
preject sneaked in a card game as Geisleman was busy helping their classmates.

When the pair saw Smith enter the classroom, they bastily put the cards away.

Effectiveness in dispute

http://www.ibj.com/reform-effort-gives-charters-leeway-to -hire-unlicensed-teachers/PAR... 10/26/2011
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Geisleman’s experience could underscore some eduoators® arguments about why a licensing process is
important.

Gerarde Gonzalez, dean of Indiana University’s School of Education, said allowing teachers in training
to spend time in classrooms with menfor teachers is crucial—as is instruction about how to teach a certain
subject and to a particular grade Jevel.

“Fiaving teachers who are not certified a1 all teaching students is 4 disservice to the stucents and teachers
because you're putling them in situations that, in many cases, 1hey can’t handle,” Gonzalez said.
Licensing “is the mechanism the state has 10 ensure that every teacher has met the minimum stendards
necessary 1o be a practicing feacher.”

Gonzilez points to a national study that TU commissioned to lool at the relationship between teacher
credentials and student achievement, The results, released Jast year, showed that fourth- and eighth-grade
students whose teathers majored in education scored three to six points higher on standardized English
and math tests than students whose teachers majored in something else, ’

However, 1 2006 study that Jooked at the impact of teacher licensing in New York City pubhc schools
using six years of test-performance data showed little difference in the student-achievemént impact
among certified, uncertified and alternatively certified teachers.

BASIS® results seem to exemplify that. The schools tout 100 percent pass-rate on state {ests, and 87
percent of students pass AP exams,

The school doesn’t track students® jncome levels, but officials estimate about 20 percent of students at the
BASIS school in Tueson qualify for frae and reduced lunch—a much Jower. percettage than in urban
schools such as Indy Met.

Nonethcless, schoo! advocates say BASIS” resulis provide a strong argument that licensing shouldn™ bea
prerequisite for teachers.

Those at BASIS and educators such as Gonzalez coneur that criticel teacher learning takes place while
they’re instructing,

Where they differ is whether it should be left up (o fhe state—or the schools themselves—to ensure that
classroom time {ranslates inio quality teachers,

Bess said charfers such as Indy Met have a strong incentive to make sure teachess are effective. If they
don™t, they’re not only subject to state intervention bt also could be shut down by authorizers.

S4l1, even proponents acknowledge (hat with Jooser licensing requirements, the state no longer has a
direct way to monitor whether all teachers are qualified for their jobs.

But if there’s added risk, they say it’s worth faking.
“The Rexibility to Tring in someone who is extracrdinary in the content area is a good thing,” Marian’s

Hill said. “T'o say no one can teach without a license misses out on soms significant apportunities for
some greal instruction.™

ADVERTISEMENT
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Add Comment 50)nd good to me
RICHARD WILSON October 27, 2011 6:35 PM

teachers donot have to have masters fo be successfull,i have an accounting degree and 35 years
experience .who do you think is better qualified {o teach?me or a rescent graduate,
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"{C_c} CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE  op 2x | ™ """

08/11/11
[ THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER h;ﬂgb'
PHONE FAX
THE MAHONEY GROUP - MESA ‘EA-“E‘I;A“I.O' Ext). (AIC, Noj:
1835 South Extension Road _;g_g%ess:
Mesa AZ 85210-5942 CUSTOUMCEE]RiID#. BASIS-3
Phone:480-730-4%920 Fax:480-730-4529% INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURED INSURER A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
SIS Schools, Inc. .
11485 N. 136th St., #109 INSURER B+
Scottsdale AZ 85259 INSURER C :
INSURER D :
INSURER E :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUNENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

"R TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR] WD POLICY NUMBER (MVIBON T4y) | (VDO P ) LIMITS
| GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK690995 03/01/11/03/01/12 PREG?JSESI?EF;Zr:cI:E#r)ence] $100,000
CLAIMS-MADE | X | OCCUR MED EXP (Anyone person) | $ 5,000
| PERSONAL & ADVINJURY (51,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE 52,000,000
E\l 'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/IOP AGG | § 2,000,000
x POLICY S‘EST "o
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY g";ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ”sm tMT 151,000,000
A X | ANvAUTO PHPK690995 03/01/11/03/01/12 ony miuRy (Perperson) |3
|| ALL OWNED AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
|__| SCHEDULED AUTOS PROPERTY DAMAGE s
X | HIRED AUTOS (Per accident)
z MNON-OWNED AUTOS $
H
X | UMBRELLA LIAS OCCUR PHUB337889 03/01/11|03/01/12  EACHOCCURRENCE $9,000,000
" | ExcESs LIAB " | cLams-maDE AGGREGATE S
4{ DEDUCTIBLE $
X | RETENTION  § 10,000 $
AND EMPLOYERS: LIABILITY i TORY LTS || ER
ANY PROPRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIV NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | s
A | Package PHPK690595 03/01/11/03/01/12 Employ Be 1,000,000
A | Professional Liab PHPK690995 03/01/11/03/01/12 Educators 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101 Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
Charter School - Educators Plus Legal Liabili tH Limit is_ $1,000,000 per
ccurrence / $1,000,000 regate Ded $1,000 efense_Reimbursement
0,000 per céurrénce g Aggregate { Sexual Phxs;cal Abusge
Molestation Occurrence / Occurrencé Limit $1,000,000 ggregate §2 000 000

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
P-—===- THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

e

Proof of Insurance

© 1988-2009 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2009/09) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Attachment 23: Portfolio Summary

School BASIS Chandler School BASIS Peoria

Year Estab“shed 20] ] Year EStab“Shed 20] ]

Enrollment 686 (E;nroélmesnt 3 600

Grades Severed | 5-10 rades severe 5-10

A7 Learns AZ Learns

Achievement N/A Achlevement N/A

. Profile
Profile
Head of School Jeffrey Houser

Head of School Tom Davison Address 25950 N. Lake

Address 1800 E. Chandler Blvd Pleasant Parkway
Chandler, AZ 85225 Peoria, AZ 85383

Phone 480.907.6072 Phone 623.566.9100

School BASIS Flagstaff School BASIS Scottsdale

Year Established | 2011 Year Established 2003

Enrollment 487 Enrollment 729

Grades Severed | 5-10 Grades Severed 5-12

AZ Learns AZ Learns

Achievement N/A Achievement Profile | Excelling

Profile

Head of School Kara Kelty Head of School John Hillis

Address 1700 N. Gemini Drive Address 11440 N. 136th Street
Flagstaff, AZ 86001 Scoftsdale, AZ 85258

Phone Phone 480.451.7500

School BASIS School BASIS Tucson

Year Established | 2010 Year Established 1998

Enroliment 648 Enrollment 705

Grades Severed | 5-11 Grades Severed 5-12

AZ Learns AZ Learns

Achievement N/A Achievement Profile Excelling

Profile

Head of School | Carolyn McGarvey Head of School Julia Toews

Address 11155 N. Oracle Road Address 3825 E. 2nd Street
Oro Valley, AZ 85737 Tucson, AZ 85716

Phone 520.308.5220 Phone 520.326.6367




Demographics

BASIS schools have never collected income data on students; therefore, we do not have any
free/reduced price lunch data. The following is the most recent special education and race/ethnicity
data we have. At the time of this application, BASIS Chandler, BASIS Flagstaff, and BASIS Peoria are in
the first months of operation. They have collected special education information and are performing
SPED services for those students in need; however, the data has not yet been placed in our data
management system. This takes place at the end of October.

Enrollment by Ethnicity (as of October 27, 2011)

Native Two
Native African Hawaiian/Pacific or

School American  Asian American Hispanic Islander White More
Chandler 0.1% 63.2% 3.2% 5.1% 0.0% 249% 3.5%
Flagstaff 4.2% 4.6% 0.4% 11.1% 0.0% 75.8% 3.8%
Oro Valley 1.4%  15.1% 2.8% 11.4% 0.9% 68.5% 0.0%
Peoria 0.3% 32.5% 1.0% 7.6% 0.0% 55.2% 3.4%
Scottsdale 0.3%  40.9% 1.9% 2.1% 0.9% 53.8% 0.1%
Tucson 1.4% 21.0% 4.1% 20.1% 0.1% 52.8% 0.4%

Grand Total 1.1%  31.0% 2.3% 9.5% 0.3% 53.9% 1.7%



BASIS GRADUATES: COLLEGE AUCEPTANCES

Harvaird University

Prirceton University

Stanford University

Unlversity of Pennsylvanic
Massachusetis nstitute of Technology
Dartmouth College

University.of Chicogo

Duke University

Northveestern University

Jphns Hopkins University
CorngllUniversity

Rice University

University of Notre Dame

Errary University

Unlversity of Colifornia, Berkeley
Catnegie Melion University

University of Southem Californid
University of Southem California {School of Architecture)
University of California, Los Angeles |
jmffs University

University of North Caroling, Chopel Hill
New York University |
Brandels University

Georgia Tech

Uritversity of California, San Diege
University of Rochester
University of Californic, Davis
Unlversity of Colifornia, Sante Barbard
Case Western University

Rensse!cer Polyléchnic Institute
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University of Colifornig, Irvine
University of Washingion
University of Texas, Austin
University of ilinois

Tulane University

Bosion College

Fordhom Univarsity

- Purdus Unliversity:

University of Pitisburgh

Nertheastarn University

Uriversity of Connacticut

Colorado Schod! of the idings

University.of Calfornia, Santa Cruz

Armencan University

Drexel University

Uriiversity of Colorado, Boulder

University of Colorado, Boulder {Honors Coflege)

University of California, Riverside

“The University of Oklahioma

University of Oregon

- niversity of Or&gm {Clark-Honors College)

Uritversity of South Caroling.
University of Arlzona

Uniiversity of Arizonct {Honors College)
Hofstro University

Artzona State Uiniversity

Arizong State University (Barreti Honors College)

University of Texas, Dallas

University of Colorade, Denver [Leaders Program)

Wiliams College




Amherst College
Swarthmore College
Middiebury College
Carleton College

Claremont Mekenng Col ege

Wesleyan University
Smith College

United States Milfiary Academy, West Point

Grinnell College
Harvey Mudd College
Colgate University
Oberiin College
Seripps College
Barnard College
Colorado GQIiégﬁ
Mocalester College
Kount Holyoke College
Bryn Mawr Coliege
Ceoidenta College
Bard College

Whitmar: College

Reed College .
Spelman College
Wheaton College
Willarnetie University
Ursinus College

Lewis and Clark College
Cornell Universiy

University of Puget Sound

Hillsdale Coliege
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CGoucher College

Wesiminsier College

Morehouse College

S8t John's College:
Baldwin-Walloce Collece
Concordic Uriversity

Rochester Instifuie of Technology
Emerson Coliege

Embry Riddle Astonauiicat University
Seattie University (Monors College]
University of Portland

University of Redlands

University of Colerado, Colorado Springs (Honors College

Woodbury College

Seion Hill University

Chomploin College

Brigham Young University, ldaho

Savannah College of Art and Design
Brigham Young University, Howoi

Norirem Arizong University

Northern Arizona University {Honors College)
University of Houston |
University of New Mexico

Bobson College

Grand Canyon University

McGill University

Sarah Lawrence College



2011 AP Results for BASIS Schools

Number of Percent Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent

Subject School Average | Median | Mode | Scoring3 | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring
= or More 1 2 3 4 5
Scottsdale 25 3.7 4 5 84 16 0 20 28 36
Tucson 40 4.2 4 5 91 5 5 5 38 48
Biology All BASIS Schools 65 4.0 4 5 88 9 3 11 34 43
Arizona 1,706 2.6 2 1 48 37 15 16 16 16
Global 184,485 2.7 3 1 51 35 15 15 17 19
Scottsdale 38 3.7 4 5 84 13 3 24 21 39
Tucson 21 4.3 5 5 100 0 0 24 24 52
Calculus AB All BASIS Schools 59 3.9 4 5 90 8 2 24 22 44
Arizona 3,037 2.6 3 1 51 37 12 18 15 18
Global 255,341 2.8 3 1 56 33 11 19 16 21
Scottsdale 35 4.7 5 5 100 0 0 9 11 80
Tucson 23 4.9 5 5 100 0 0 0 13 87
Calculus BC All BASIS Schools 58 4.8 5 5 100 0 0 5 12 83
Arizona 1,298 3.5 4 5 76 17 7 21 16 39
Global 85,181 3.8 4 5 81 14 6 17 16 48
Chinese Tucson 1 3.0 3 3 100 0 0 100 0 0
Language and Arizona 68 4.5 5 5 96 0 4 15 7 74
Culture Global 7,961 4.5 5 5 95 2 2 9 14 72
Scottsdale 18 3.9 4 5 94 6 33 22 39
Tucson 37 3.0 3 3 65 11 24 38 8 19
Chemistry All BASIS Schools 55 33 3 3 74 7 18 36 13 26
Arizona 1,543 2.8 3 1 58 26 16 23 20 15
Global 122,642 2.8 3 1 55 30 15 20 18 17




2011 AP Results for BASIS Schools

Number of Percent Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent
Subject School Average | Median | Mode | Scoring 3 Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring
Tests
or More 1 2 3 4 5
Oro Valley 6 3.7 4 NA 83 17 0 17 33 33
Scottsdale 16 3.8 4 NA 88 0 13 31 25 31
Tucson 5 3.0 3 3 80 0 20 60 20 0
Computer  Scottsdale and 21 3.6 3 3 86 0 14 38 24 24
Science A Tucson
All BASIS Schools 27 3.6 4 3 85 4 11 33 26 26
Arizona 89 3.3 4 4 72 18 10 20 27 25
Global 22,177 3.1 3.5 1 64 28 14 25 25
Scottsdale 43 4.3 5 5 97 0 16 30 51
_ Tucson 40 3.8 4 NA 90 0 10 30 30 30
English Language ), 515 schools 83 4.0 4 5 94 0 6 23 30 41
and Composition
Arizona 6,055 2.9 3 3 60 12 28 30 20 10
Global 412,434 2.9 3 3 61 11 28 30 20 11
Scottsdale 15 4.0 4 4 100 0 0 27 47 27
English Tucson 36 3.0 3 3 67 0 33 39 22 6
Literature and  All BASIS Schools 51 33 3 3 77 0 23 35 29 12
Composition  Arizona 5,119 2.8 3 2 55 10 35 32 16
Global 367,668 2.8 3 2 57 11 32 31 18
' Scottsdale 9 3.7 4 4 89 0 11 11 78
Environmental i ona 541 3.0 3 4 58 19 23 14 31 13
Science
Global 98,950 2.7 2 1 49 26 25 15 25 9




2011 AP Results for BASIS Schools

Number of Percent Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent

Subject School Average | Median | Mode | Scoring3 | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring
Tests or More 1 2 3 4 5
Scottsdale 36 3.4 3 3 89 3 8 53 22 14
Tucson 57 3.1 3 3 77 18 5 42 16 19
E::Sfée;n All BASIS Schools 93 3.2 3 3 82 12 6 46 18 17
Arizona 1,007 2.9 3 3 68 20 13 39 18 11
Global 107,388 2.8 3 3 65 24 12 36 19 11
Scottsdale 24 4.1 4 5 92 0 8 17 29 46
Tucson 20 4.0 4 4 85 0 15 10 40 35
Macroeconomics All BASIS Schools 44 4.0 4 5 89 0 11 14 34 41
Arizona 1,115 2.7 3 1 53 26 20 20 24 9
Global 90,114 2.8 3 1 54 28 18 17 24 13
Scottsdale 24 4.3 4 4 100 0 0 8 50 42
Tucson 20 4.0 4 NA 90 0 10 20 35 35
Microeconomics All BASIS Schools 44 4.2 4 4 95 0 5 13 43 39
Arizona 480 3.1 3 4 69 14 17 25 28 16
Global 56,295 3.0 3 4 63 21 16 21 26 16
Scottsdale 6 3.7 4 4 100 0 0 33 67 0
Physics B Arizona 844 2.7 3 1 55 30 15 26 17 12
Global 75,637 2.9 3 3 61 21 17 26 19 16
Physics C Tucson 7 4.6 5 5 100 0 0 0 43 57
Electricity and  Arizona 72 3.4 4 4 68 13 19 14 28 26
Magnetism Global 15,182 3.5 4 5 70 12 18 14 24 32




2011 AP Results for BASIS Schools

Number of Percent Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent

Subject School Average | Median | Mode | Scoring3 | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring
Tests or More 1 2 3 4 5
Scottsdale 2 4.5 4.5 NA 100 0 0 0 50 50
_ Tucson 4.9 5 5 100 0 0 0 11 89
n:ZZ::; igs All BASIS Schools 11 4.8 5 5 100 0 0 0 18 82
Arizona 384 2.8 3 3 57 23 20 24 19 15
Global 35,160 34 4 5 73 13 14 22 24 27
Oro Valley 5 2.8 3 3 80 20 0 60 20 0
Scottsdale 18 4.7 5 5 100 0 0 0 33 67
Tucson 40 3.7 4 4 80 3 18 15 35 30
Psychology i‘;‘zzt;:a'e and 58 4.0 4 5 86 2 12 10 34 41
All BASIS Schools 63 3.9 4 5 86 3 11 14 33 38
Arizona 1,524 3.3 4 4 72 15 13 21 27 24
Global 197,708 3.1 3 4 66 21 13 20 26 20
Scottsdale 11 4.2 5 5 100 0 0 36 9 55
Statistics Arizona 955 2.7 3 3 55 25 20 26 20 9
Global 142,894 2.8 3 3 58 24 18 25 21 12




2011 AP Results for BASIS Schools

Number of Percent Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent | Percent
Subject School Average | Median | Mode | Scoring3 | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring | Scoring
Tests
or More 1 2 3 4 5
Oro Valley 52 2.4 2 2 35 19 46 17 6 12
Scottsdale 46 3.9 4 NA 100 0 0 37 37 26
Tucson 58 3.7 4 5 83 2 16 26 24 33
US Scottsdale and

Government 104 3.8 4 3 91 1 9 31 30 30

. Tucson

and Politics

All BASIS Schools 156 3.3 3 3 72 7 21 26 22 24
Arizona 4,297 2.7 3 NA 52 22 25 25 14 13
Global 225,729 2.7 3 3 52 24 24 25 14 13
Scottsdale 24 4.3 4 5 96 0 4 13 37 46
Tucson 35 3.5 4 4 80 0 20 23 43 14
US History All BASIS Schools 59 3.8 4 4 87 0 13 19 41 27
Arizona 6,124 2.6 2 2 49 24 27 20 19 10
Global 406,037 2.8 3 2 53 20 27 21 21 11
Oro Valley 63 2.6 2 2 43 19 38 21 10 13
Scottsdale 390 4.0 4 5 94 3 3 23 31 41
Tucson 449 3.7 4 5 83 4 13 24 26 32
All Tests ~ Scottsdaleand 839 3.9 4 5 88 3 8 24 28 36

Tucson
All BASIS Schools 902 3.8 85 4 11 24 27 34
Arizona 36,258 2.8 56 21 23 25 18 13
Global 2,908,983 2.9 58 21 21 23 20 15




2011 IGCSE Results for BASIS Schools

Subject School A* A B C D E F G
N 1
Chemistry Scottsdale umber 3 8 >
Percent 18 6 47 29
Scottsdale Number 2 5 13 8 7 3 3 0
Percent 5 12 32 20 17 7 7 0
. Number 3 3 3 3 6 3 2 1
Economics Tucson
Percent 13 13 13 13 25 13 8 4
Number 5 8 16 11 13 6 5 1
Both
Percent 8 12 25 17 20 9 8 2
Scottsdale Number 6 17 31 25 10 6
Percent 6 18 33 26 11 6
. Number 2 8 24 39 16 10
English Tucson
Percent 2 8 24 39 16 10
Number 8 25 55 64 26 16
Both
Percent 4 13 28 33 13 8
Scottsdale Number 0 0 8 3 6 11 2
Percent 0 0 27 10 20 37 7
. Number 3 2 1 2 2 1 0
History Tucson
Percent 27 18 9 18 18 9 0
Number 3 2 9 5 8 12 2
Both
Percent 7 5 22 12 20 29 5
Scottsdale Number 15 26 29 16 8 0
Percent 16 27 30 17 8 0
. Number 1 14 21 36 11 14
Mathematics Tucson
Percent 1 14 20 35 10 13
Number 16 40 50 52 19 14
Both
Percent 8 20 25 26 10 7
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2011 IGCSE Results for BASIS Schools

Scoring A*-C Scoring G or Better
Tests Tests | Scoring | Provisional Global |Scoring G| Provisional Global
Subject School Taken | Scored A*-C Results June 2010 | or Better | Results June 2010
. Number 30 17 4 NA 17 NA
Chemistry Scottsdale
Percent 100 57 24 77 100 99
Number 49 41 28 NA 41 NA
Scottsdale
Percent 100 84 68 73 100 97
. Number 24 24 12 NA 24 NA
Economics Tucson
Percent 100 100 50 73 100 97
Both Number 73 65 40 NA 65 NA
Percent 100 89 62 73 100 97
Number 96 95 79 NA 95 NA
Scottsdale
Percent 100 99 83 81 100 98
. Number 105 101 73 NA 99 NA
English Tucson
Percent 100 96 72 81 98 98
Both Number 201 196 152 NA 194 NA
Percent 100 98 78 81 g 98
Number 40 30 8 NA 30 NA
Scottsdale
Percent 100 75 27 75 100 99
. Number 11 11 6 NA 11 NA
History Tucson
Percent 100 100 55 75 100 99
Both Number 51 41 14 NA 41 NA
Percent 100 80 34 75 100 99
Number 96 95 86 NA 94 NA
Scottsdale
Percent 100 99 90 75 99 95
. Number 105 103 72 NA 97 NA
Mathematics Tucson
Percent 100 98 70 75 94 95
Both Number 201 198 158 NA 191 NA
Percent 100 99 80 75 96 95
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2011 AIMS Results for BASIS Schools

Rank of Rank of
Percent Percent Percent Percent
Subject Grades School Exceeding Exceeding Passing Passing
Arizona 23 59
BASIS Scottsdale 88 2 99 3
Sth-8th BASIS Tucson 76 4 98 5
BASIS Oro Valley 66 8 96 9
Arizona 23 58
. BASIS Scottsdale 92 2 99 2
Math Middle School - 56\ Tucson 81 4 99 2
BASIS Oro Valley 70 7 96 10
Arizona 21 60
High School BASIS Scottsdale 100 1 100 1
BASIS Tucson 97 2 100 1
BASIS Oro Valley 75 7 94 16
Arizona 10 78
BASIS Scottsdale 44 3 99 8
Sth-8th BASIS Tucson 36 5 100 1
BASIS Oro Valley 24 51 98 22
Arizona 10 78
. . BASIS Scottsdale 48 2 99 7
Reading Middle School BASIS Tucson 38 7 100 1
BASIS Oro Valley 28 16 98 17
Arizona 12 78
High School BASIS Scottsdale 78 1 100 1
BASIS Tucson 63 3 100 1
BASIS Oro Valley 44 11 100 1
Arizona 6 55
BASIS Oro Valley 37 2 92 15
Sth-8th BASIS Scottsdale 32 5 95 5
BASIS Tucson 11 152 92 15
Arizona 7 55
. . BASIS Scottsdale 42 3 96 4
Writing Middle School 51 0ro valley 36 5 93 10
BASIS Tucson 17 37 95 6
Arizona 5 68
High School BASIS Scottsdale 53 1 100 1
BASIS Tucson 32 3 98 10
BASIS Oro Valley 31 4 100 1
Arizona 39 63
BASIS Tucson 99 1 100 1
Sth-8th BASIS Scottsdale 99 1 100 1
. BASIS Oro Valley 82 12 96 19
Science -
Arizona 24 49
. BASIS Oro Valley 100 1 100 1
High School 51 scottsdale 98 2 100 1
BASIS Tucson 93 3 100 1
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Attachment 24: Indiana School Financials

This attachment is not applicable to BASIS Indianapolis, as we have not operated any schools in Indiana
over the last three years.



Financial Statement
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Fester
©Chapman p.C. o0t ot ar e

Phoenix, AZ 85012-2086

Certified
Public _
Accountants Tel: (602) 264-3077
_ . Fax: (602) 265-6241
Independent Auditors' Report
To the Board of Directors

BASIS School, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of BASIS School, Inc. (the
Firm), a nonprofit organization, as of June 30, 2010, and the related statements of activities, and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Firm's
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

amounts and disciosures im ihe fimancial statements—m- audit-also—includes—assessing-the

accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of BASIS School, Inc. as of June 30, 2010, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting

principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 8, 2010, on our consideration of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts, grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
of the Firm taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for the
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

Tosts, £ Cspran. DC.

October 8, 2010




BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCTAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2010
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 010,720
Accounts recejvable 25,624
Prepaid expenses 73,680
Due from governmental entities 76,182
Other accrued revenues 19,008
Restricted cash - prepaid interest 325,597
Restricted cash - operating reserve 496,395
Other current assets 24.445
Total Current Assets 1,951,651
Noncurrent Assefs .
Loan issuance costs, net of accumulafed amortization of $88,554 018,696
Restricted cash - project funds 1,791,190
Property and equipment - net 15,423,236
QOther noncurrent assets 5,000
Totat Noncurrent Assets 18,138,122
Total Assets $20,089,773
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 76,004
Accrued construction costs 1,004,331
Deferred revenues ' 26,450
Deposits held for others 422,365
Due to government 353
Current maturities of long-term debt 188,102
Total Current Liabilities 1,717,605
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 19,030,000
Total Liabilities 20,747,605
Net Assets
Unrestricted (deficit) (962,908)
Temporarily restricted 305,076
Total Net Assets (Deficit) (657,832)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit)

820,089,773

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these statements.
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BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Revenue and Support
State Equalization $ 6,036,483 $ 6,036,483
Federal grants 1,724,708 1,724,708
State grants 393,692 393,692
Extra-curricular activities fees tax credit $ 151571 151,57t
Special events 543,021 543,021
less cost of direct benefits to donors (43,060} {43,060)
Other revenue 375,240 375,240
Net assets released from restriction 620,073 (620,073} .
Total Revenue and Support 9,150,196 31,459 0,181,655
Program Services Expenses
Salaries and wages, leased employees 3,902,122 3,902,122
Pension plan contributions, leased employees 164,622 164,622
Other employee benefits, Jeased employees 325,518 325,518
Payroll taxes, leased employees 319,437 319,437
Management fees 829,440 829,440
Legal fees 22,220 22,220
Other services fees 231,120 231,120
Advertising and promotion 5,075 5,075
Office expenses 255,053 255,053
Information technology 54,371 54,371
Occupancy 278,578 278,578
Travel 19,811 19,811
Conferences and meetings 4,503 4,503
Depreciation 433,962 433,962
Insurance 29,331 29,331
Other expenses 112,742 112,742
Total Program Services Expenses 6,987,905 6,987,905
Management and General Expenses
Management fees 898,560 898,560
Legal fees 27,685 27.685
Accounting fees 14,590 14,590
Other services fees 11,247 11,247
Conferences and meetings 684 684
Interest 976,380 976,380
Amortization 26,131 26,131
- Insurance 6,201 6,201
Other expenses 30,447 30,447
Total Management and General Expenses 1,591,925 1,991,925
Fundraising Expenses
Professional fees 37,988 37,088
Other expenses ) 23,936 23,936
Total Fundraising Expenses 61,924 61,924
Total Expenses . 9,041,754 0,041,754
Change in Net Assets 108,442 31,459 139,901
Net Assets (Deficit), July 1, 2009 {1,071,350% 273,617 (797,733}
Net Assets (Deficit), June 30, 2010 $ (962,908) & 305,076 $ (657,832)

4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets (deficit) $ 139,901
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 433,962
Amortization of loan issnance costs 26,131
Changes in:
Accounts receivable {14,465)
Prepaid expenses (66,379)
Due from governmental entities (17,967)
Other accrued revenues ' 33,993
Other assets (29,445)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 42,573
Deferred revenues 4.350
Deposits held for others 210,850
Other current liabilities 353
Net cash provided by operating activities 763,857
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
(Deposits to)/withdrawals from restricted cash (1,910,413)
Sale of property and equipment B 7,144
Purchase of property and equipment (3.031,633)
Net cash used for investing activities” (4,934,902)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities: - -
Proceeds from loan 4,809,140
Principal payments on long-term debt {174,381}
Net cash provided by financing activities 4,634,759
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 463,714
Cash and cash eguivalents, July 1,2009 - 447,006
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2010 $ 910,720
Supplemental data;
Cash paid for interest on long-term debt $ 976,380
$ 120,846

Capitalized interest

The accompanying notes are afl integral part of these statements.
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BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- June 30, 2010

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS School, Inc. (the Firm), an Arizona not-for-profit organization, was formed in
fiscal year 1998-99 and opened BASIS School - Tucson that year, In fiscal year 2003-04,
the Firm opened BASIS School - Scottsdale. To efficiently manage the two schools, the
Firm entered into a management services agreement with BASIS Educational Group Inc.
(BEG, a related party) on June 25, 2009. The Firm provides educational services to
students in fifih through twelfth grades. The Firm operates under three charter contracts
with the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, which mandates policy and operational
guidelines. Subsequent to year-end, the Firm opened BASIS School - Oro Valley and
plans to open three additional schools in fiscal year 2011-12.

The significant accounting policies of the Firm are as follows:

Basis of Presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB

© ASC) topic of Not-for-Profit Entities. The Firm is required -to report information

regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets:
unrestricted. net assets, temporarily testricted net assets, and permanently. restricted net
assets. The Firm does not have any permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2010,

Use of Estimates: In preparing financial statements in conformuty with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amonunts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. . '

Contribﬁtiohs: The Firm follows the FASB ASC subtopic of revenue recognition for Noz-

- for-Profit Entities. Contributions received are recorded as unmrestricted, temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support based on the existence and/or nature of any
- donor restrictions. All donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily

restricted or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction.

When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or

purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released .
from restrictions.  Donor-testricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same
reporting period are reported as unrestricted support.

Duc from Covernmental Entities: Due from government consists mainly of state
approved payments to the Firm to operate the charter schools. The Firm has never
experienced any losses due to non-payment,- and therefore has not established an

6




BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l June 30, 2010

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- Continued
l allowance.

T Property and Bquipment: Land, buildings and improvements and leasehold improvements

l with an initial cost of $3,000 or more, and vehicles, furniture and equipment with an

initial cost of $300 or more, with an estimated life of one year or more, are capitalized.

" Textbooks with an estimated life of one year of more are capitalized. Assets are stated at

l ~ cost. Depreciation and amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets.

I The estimated lives used in determining depreciation and amortization are:
‘- Buildings and improvements 40 years
! Vehicles, furniture and equipment 3-5 years
~ Textbooks _ 3 years
I Leasehold improvements | life of the lease

Tncome Taxes: The Firm is exempt from federal income taxes as an organization other
than a private foundation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and from

E = __ Arizona-income-taxesunder Section 43-147(a)(4).of the Arizona Revised Statufes.
! ' Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
i '

Expense _Allocation: The costs of providing various programs and other activities have
been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

. Loan Issuance Costs: Loan issuance costs and origination fees are deferred and amortized
! over the term of the loans.



BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of required deposits associated with the Jong-term debt (see note
5), Operating reserve - initial funds may be used if normal operations of the Firm become
impaired. Project funds may be used solely to complete construction on the Oro Valley

" campus. The accounts are held by U.S. Bank National Association as trustee. Restricted
cash as of June 30, 2010 is as follows:

Series 2006 Bond
Operating reserve - initial $ 140,287
Series 2007 Bond
Operating reserve - initial 236,442
Series 2010 Bond
- Project funds - 1,791,190
Operating reserve - initial ' 119.666
Total | $ 2287585

——— W mEmn AW Rmwm mmm BRSO W B OB T2 S B Fr

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

At June 30, 2010, the Firm had deposits of $719,268 in excess of Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation at one financial institution, located in Tucson, Arizona. The Firm
* has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any

significant risk. '



BASIS School, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Propeffy and equipment at June 30, 2010 consists of the following:

T Land and improvements | S 4,689,668
' Buildings and leasehold improvements , 8,669,444
al Vehicles, furniture and equipment 018,968
. Textbooks 260,471
! Construction in progress ‘ 2.567.182
1 Total | B 17,105,733
ﬂ Less accumulated depreciation , 1.682.497
!' Property and equipment, net $15.423.236
j : Depreciation for the year ended June 30, 2010 totaled $433,962.
E' NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT |
l Long-term debt consists of the following at Tune'30, 2010:
X
Education Revenue Bonds (Series 2006) were issued by the Industrial

_ Development Authority of Pima County, Arizona, in the aggregate

! principal amount of $5,155,000. The proceeds of the bonds were

. loaned to the Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated May 1, 2006.

! The loan matures over 30 years with an effective interest rate of

approximately 8.09%. Monthly principal and interest payments vary,

. and principal payments range from a minimum of 35,000 to a

! maximum of $43,333. The loan proceeds are to be used by the Firm

, for the following purposes: (i) to purchase land buildings and to fund

: improvements; (ii) to fund a debt service reserve fund; (iii) for the

!-_ payment of loan issuance costs; and (iv) extinguishment of the

: _outstanding Series 2004 Education Revenue Bonds. The loan is

’ secured by a deed of trust on real property and through assignment of

! State Equalization revenues of the Firm. $ 4,970,000

I 9



BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Education Revenue Bonds (Series 2007) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of Pima County, Arizona, in the aggregate
principal amount of $9,000,000. The proceeds of the bonds were
loaned to the Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated February 1,
2007. The loan matures over 30 years with an effective interest rate of

" approximately 7.79%. Monthly principal and interest payments vary,

and principal payments range from a minimum of 58,333 to a
maximum of $106,250. The loan proceeds are to be used by the Firm
for the following purposes: (i) to purchase land buildings and to fund
improvements; (ii) to fund a debt service reserve fund; and, (iii) for
the payment of loan issuance costs. The loan is secured by a deed of
trust on real property and through assignment of State Equalization
revenues of the Firm. 8,795,000

Education Revenue Bonds (Series 2010) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. in the aggregate
principal amount of $5,450,000. .The. procgeds-of .the bonds. were. ...
loaned to the Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated March 1, 2010.

Fhe-loarmatures—over—39-years—with-an--effective-interest rate—of

‘approximately 7.75%. Monthly principal and interest payments vary,

and principal payments range from a minimum of $4,583 to a

" maximum of $45,833. The loan proceeds are to be used by the Firm

for the following purposes: (i) to purchase land buildings and to fund
improvements; (i) to fund a debt service reserve fund; and, (iii) for

the payment of loan issuance costs. The loan is secured by a deed of

trust on real property and through assignment of State Equalization

revenues -of the Firm. : _ 5,450,000

$20,047 note payable for the purchase of a school vehicle, maturing
January 2011. Note is due in 60 installments of $398, which includes _
interest at 7.24% 3,102

Total 19,218,102

Less current maturities 188,102

19,030,000
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BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

The aggregate future minimum payments on long-term debt as of June 30, 2010, are as

follows: _
Year ending June 30: ‘

2011 , $ 188,102
2012 250,000 -
2013 270,000
2014 290,000
2015 300,000
Thereafter : 17.920,000

‘ $19.218.102

NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASES

The Firm has various operating leases for copief:equipment, expiring in fiscal year 2011-
2012 and 2012-2013. Rental expense for those leases was $13,050 for the year ended
June 30, 2010, Future minimumn operating lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2011 $ 32,052
2012 ... 29040
2013 ' - 16.164

$ 17256

NOTE 7 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2010 are restricted'for use in BASIS -
Scottsdale and BASIS - Tucson master teacher programs.

11



I . BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010
I : NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONT]NG'ENT LIABILITIES -
Compliance: The Firm's compliance with certain laws and regulations is subject to review

by the State of Arizona, Office of the Auditor General and Department of Bducation.
Such reviews could result in adjustments or withholding of State Equalization assistance.

Commitments: .

On June 25, 2009, the Firm entered into a 10-year agreement with BASIS Educational
Group, Inc. (BEG, a related party) to provide charter school management, teaching
services and administrative services. The Firm paid BEG $1,767,000 during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010. The subsequent years’ fees will be adjusted for cost-of-living
and other nongovernmental revernue growth adjustments. In addition, under the agreement
the Firm leased all teachers and non-management on-site personnel from BEG.

In March 2010, the Firm began construction of the Oro Valley campus. As of June 30,
2010, the Firm had $2,567,182 in construction in progress related to the new campus,
with remaining commitments of approximately $798,000 to complete the project.

NOTE 9 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Approximately 7% of the Firm's revenue-for-the-year-ended-June-30,-2010-was-derived
from the State of Arizona through payments of State Equalization, Classroom Site Funds
(Proposition 301), State of Arizona grants, and federal grants passed through the State of
Arizona. Funds that are paid from the State of Arizona are subject to funding approval
from the state legislature. Changes in state funding levels for charter schools could have
a significant impact on the Firm's revenues.

NOTE 10 - RELATED PARTY

Michael Block, an authorized agent for the Firm and a shareholder of BEG, maintained an
active Board member position throughout the fiscal year. As a Board member, Mr. Block
could influence the financial and operational activities of the Firm through voting
authority. However, his voting power did not constitute a majority of the Firm's Board of
Directors and Mr. Block recused himself from all votes involving BEG.

Under terms of the management agreément, the Firm paid BEG 34,711,699 for leased
employee costs and $1,767,000 in management services fees. No amounts were due to

BEG at year-end.
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BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2010

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Firm has evalnated subsequent events through October 8, 2010, the date which the
_ financial statements were available to be issued, and has concluded that no events have
oceurred since the year ended June 30, 2010 that would require an adjustment to or
_ disclosure in the financial statements.
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Fester

4001 North 3rd Street
©Chapman p.C. Sute 275
Certified Phoenix, AZ 85012-2086
Public Tel: (602) 264-3077
Accountanis Fax: (602) 265-6241

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
BASIS School, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

We have audited the financial statements of BASIS School, Inc. (the Firm), a nonprofit
organization as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued cur report thereon dated
October 8, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

I pl'anning_an‘d—p'erfonning—our—audit,—weﬂcansi-dered——t—he—Finn%s-iiatemal_controI_oxzer financial

‘reporting as a basis for designing our anditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our

opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Firm's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

14



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Firm's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our andit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management,
the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, and the Auditor General of the State of Arizona,

~ and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

October 8, 2010
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ASSETS

Current Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents $
" Apcounts receivable
. Prepaid expenses
‘Due from governmental entities
Other aceroed revemies
Restricted cash - prepaid interest
Restricted cash - operating reserve
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Loan issuance costs, net of accumulated
amortization of $88,554
Restricted cash
- Property and equipment - net
" Other noncurrent assets
Total Noncarrent Assets

BASIS SCHOOL, INC. |
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2010
BASIS BASIS BASIS
BSI School - Schoo) - School -
Ceniral Tucson Scottsdale Oro Valley Totals
135777 § 288,140 § - 486,803 § . 910,720
1,401 - 11,815 12,408 25,624
528 3,806 4,732 64,614 73,680
40,312 35,870 76,182
435 18,200 373 19,008
325,597 325,597
140,287 - 236,442 119,666 496,395
22,625 1,820 24.445
137,706 507,420 756,275 510,250 1,951,651
266,589 339,909 312,198 918,656
1,791,190 1,791,190
4,264,977 7,239,021 3,919,238 15,423,236
5,000 5,000
_ 4,531,566 7,578,930 6,027,626 18,138,122

Total Assels 3

137,706 8 “'5,0’3’8’,’986'"$‘":"8‘,375,20‘5“ § 6537876

f—————]

§ 20,089,773

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses b
Acecrued construction costs
Deferred revenues
Deposits held for others
Due to government
Current maturities of long term debt
Other current liabilities *
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt; net of current maturities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted {deficit)
Temporarily restricted
Total Net Assets (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Defici)  §

7.064 § 41,940 § 27,000 ¥ 76,004
‘ 1,004,331 1,004,331
8,550 17,900 26,450
175,805 148,135 08,425 422,365
69 70 214 353
73,102 115,000 188,102
{83,813) 7,452 77,893 (1,532)
(76,745) 306,918 385,098 1,101,438 1,717,605
4,900,000 © 8,680,000 5,450,000 19,030,000
(76,749) 5,206,918 9,065,998 6,551,438 20,747,605
214,455 (254,076) (509,725) (13,562} {962,908)
86,144 218,932 305,076
214,455 {167,932) (650,793) (13,562) (657,832)

*  Amounts include inter-school borrowing for the purpose of the Combining Statement of Financial Position
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BASIS SCHOOL, INC. .
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010
BASIS BASIS BASIS
BS1 School - School - . Bchool -
Ceniral Tucson Scotisdale Oro Valley Totals

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Chiange in net assets (deficit) 3 (51,369) § 297,383 § (92,551} § (13,562) % 139,501
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assels 1o

net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

-Depreciation — - — - . 1,177 190,738 242,047 433,962
Amorttzation of loan issuance costs 10,321 ¢ 12,745 3,065 26,131
Changes in:

Acconnts receivable . (967) (5.459) (4,039 (14,465}
Prepaid expenses 3,434 (1,693) - (3,507 (64,613) {66,379)
Due from governmental entities {(8,803) {9,164) (17,267

Other acerued revenues 24,566 9,800 (373) 33,903
Other assets _ . (22,625) (1,820 (5,000) (29,445)
Accounis payable and accrued expenses {67 32,514 10,126 42.573
Peferred revenues 5,250 (900) 4,350
Deposits held for others 73,750 38,675 08,425 210,850

Other current lisbilities (91,175_) . (221.411) 314257 (1,318) - 153

Net eash provided by (used for) operating activities . (136,967) 370,531 515,669 16,624 763,857

Cash Flows From Investing Activities;

{Deposits to)/withdrawals from restricted cash ) ) 163 280 (1,910,856) (1,910,413)
Sale of property and equipment 5,909 - 415 820 ] 7,144

- Purchase of property and equipment : (99492 (17.233) {2.914,908) (3,031,633)
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 5,509 {98.,914) (16,133) (4,825,764) (4,934,502)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

— Proceeds from loans 4,809,140 4,809,140
Principal payments on long-term debt {7.483) {61,898) (105,000) (174,381)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities A (7,483) (61,898) {105,000} 4,808,140 4,634,759

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {140,541) 209,719 394,536 463,714
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2009 276,319 78,426 92,261 447,006
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2010 ‘ $ 135,778 § 288,145 § 486,797 § $ 910,720

- Supplemental data:

Cash paid for interest on long-term debt $ 3 362,005 § 613,750 § 625 § 976,380
Capitalized interest ‘ $ $ 5 $ 120,846 _$ 120,846



BASIS School, Inc,

MASTER TEACHER PROGRAM SUMMARY

~ Fuly 2009 through June 2010
l Tucsor Scottsdale Total
S Beginning Balance, July 1, 2009 ‘ ' S 71,634 $ 201,983 s 273,617
I : MT Camp 09/10 Receipts . ‘
-— Craig & Barbara Barrett Foundation Coniribution o : 150,000 © 150,000
Other Contributions ‘ 84,544 263,538 348,482
i . Pledges - 14,544 16,295 ‘ 30,839
' Non Deductible Fundraising Events Gross Revenues 13,700 ) 13,700
P Total Gross Proceeds g 99,488 443,533 543,021
I ‘ Expenses - MT Camp 02/10 ‘
. Fundraising Events Direct Costs . 42,978 42,978
Other Fundraising Expenses . : 16,042 45,864 62,006
Total Fundraising Expenses : 16,042 88,542 104,984
Total Net Fundraising 09/10 ' 83,446 154,591 438,037
Expended on Teacher Salaries in 09/1¢ - MT Supplements . ° 44,557 312,196 356,753
Expended on Teacher Salaries in 05/10 - URC Supplements 24,379 25446 45,825
Total Expended on Teacher Salaries in 09/10 68,936 337,642 406,578

Ending Balance, June, 2010 - Available for Teacher Salaries in 10/11 _§ 86,144 5 218,932 b 305,076
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BASIS School, Inc.
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO

Year Ended June 30, 2010 -

 Covenants
Article VIII, Special Cavenants, Section 8.04 Audits )
- Debt Service Coverage Ratio. The Borrower will deliver to the Issuer, the Trustee, the Bondholder Representative and each:
. Significant Bondholder within 30 days of the completion of the Borrower’s annual audited financial statements, a Certificate
B _ executed by the Borrower stating the Debt Service Coverage Ratm :
Series 2006 " Series 2007
Net income available for debt service: . : o
Pledged revenue $ 5,103,380
Interest earnings _ : -
Total operating expenses: 3 8,945,917
Net income (loss) 153,463
Add: depreciation 433,962
Add: amortization 26,131
Add: non-cash expenses -
: Add: interest expense 975,755 ‘
Add: revenues pald by Firm, not from pledged revenues L 1,589,311

Add back: o
Extraordinary items ' -
Gain/loss on extgnishcment of debt -
Proceeds of new debt - ‘ .
Proceeds of insurance policies i ' ' ' o

o MNEAGE 4 Me LEETERRLT ARTTEL WS L TEe T

' Maxinium annual debt service requirement: Year . Year
Highest principal and interest ' 2017—13 I ,j.:.,_:420,550 2026,27 $,,J 129 4257

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RA‘I‘IO 3.8

L

: - In fiscal year 2009-10 BASIS Schools, Inc. received $5 450,000 pursuant toa loan agreement W1t11 the 5:- dy
_Development Authonty of the Town of Florence, Tng., which issued Series 2010 Bonds dated March 1, 2010 It
fund the loan. The debt service coverage ratio’ requn‘ement (DSCR) contained in the Series 2010 loan agrecmen
is similar to the requirements in the Series 2006 and 2007 loan agreements However, the Series 2010 loa
‘agreement reqitires that revenues and £Xpenses defived from the Org Valley campus are to be-vsed solely
determing comphance with the DSCR. The Oro Valley campus did not commence operations- unt:I fiscal
2010-11, ﬂlerefore, the DSCR. calculation will be presented separate]y Jn subsequent penods s

D Pursuant 1o the Series 2006 and 2007 loan agreements’ deﬁmtmn of "Pledged- Revenue“ and “Qp
Expenses", only the revenues and expenses of the BASIS - Scottsdale and BASIS - Tucson campuses are’
determmc comphance W]th the debt service coverage ratio requlrement . :

21
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Fax: (602) 265-6241

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors
BASIS School, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of BASIS School, Inc. (the
Firm, a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2009, and the related statements of activities, and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Firm's

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of BASIS School, Inc. as of June 30, 2009, and the changes in its net assets

and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. ;

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 30, 2009, on our consideration of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
of the Firm taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for the
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

Hito, s Chapman .

October 30, 2009



BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2009

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents _ $
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Prepazid expenses
Due from governmental entities
Other accrued revenucs
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Loan issuance cost, net of accumulated amortization of $69,565
Proparty and equipment - net
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets $

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $
Deferred revenues
Depcsits held for others
Current maturities of long term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted (deficit)
Temporarily restricted
Total Net Assets (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit) 5

447,006
377,172
11,158
7,302
58,218
53,000

953,856

629,564
11,328,376

12,457,940

13,411,796

33,431

22,100
211,515
174,409

441,455

13,768,074

14,209,529

(1,071,350)
273,617

(797,733)

13,411,796




BASIS SCHOOL, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Revenue and Support
State Equalization $ 6,635,281 $  6,635281
State grants 431,530 431,530
Federal grants 73,567 73,567
Extra-curricular activities fees tax credit $ 127,283 127,283
Special event 517,210 517,210
less cost of direct benefits to donors (41,607) (41,607)
Other revenue 565,879 565,879
Net assets released from restriction 479,554 479,554
Total Revenue and Support 8,185,811 123,332 8,309,143
Program Services Expenses
Salaries and wages 4,068,257 4,068,257
Pension plan contributions 362,605 362,605
Other employee benefits 237,076 237076
Payroll taxes 307,288 307,288
Legal fees 4,402 4,402
Other services fees 202,598 202,598
Advertising and promotion 7,888 7,888
Office expenses 271,920 271,920
Information technology 43,501 43,501
Occupancy 436,895 436,895
Travel 69,113 69,113
Conferences and meetings 5,732 5,732
Depreciation 491,808 491,808
Insurance 33,059 33,059
Other expenses 130,961 130,961
Total Program Services Expenses 6,673,103 6,673,103
Management and General Expenses
Compensation of officers 414,000 414,000
Other salaries and wages 198,500 198,500
Pension plan contributions 57,881 57,881
Other employee benefits 21,211 21,211
Payroll taxes 35,996 35,996
Legal fees 4,399 4,399
Accounting fees 68,967 68,967
Other services fees 52,903 52,903
Office expenses 4,870 4,870
Information technology 2,107 2,107
Travel 817 817
Interest 989,132 989,132
Amortization 23,066 23,066
Insurance 15,053 15,053
Other expenses 6,400 6,400
Total Management and General Expenses 1,895,302 1,895,302
Fundraising Expenses
Professional fees 20,841 20,841
Other expenses 37,737 37,737
Total Fundraising Expenses 58,578 58,578
Total Expenses 8,626,983 8,626,983
Change in Net Assets (441,172) 123,332 (317,840)
Net Assets, July 1, 2008 (630,178) 150,285 (479,893)
Net Assets, June 30, 2009 3 513071,3502 3 273,617 § (797,733)




BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets $ (317,840)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 491,808
Amortization of loan issuance costs 23,066
Changes in:
Accounts receivable {11,158)
Prepaid items 12,544
Due from governmental entities 91,903
Other accrued revennes - (35,979)
Other assets 52,059
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (133,441)
Deferred revenues 9,597
Deposits held for others 15,735
Net cash providgd by operating activities 198,294
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Withdrawals from restricted cash 7,185
Purchase of property and equipment (89,373)
Net cash used for investing activities (82,188)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt (179,528)
Net cash used for financing activities (179,528)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (63,422)
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2008 510,428
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2009 $ 447,006
1
Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest on long-term debt $ 989,132

e  —



BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS School, Inc, (the Firm) is an Arizona not-for-profit organization formed in fiscal
year 1998-99. In fiscal year 1998-99, the Firm opened BASIS School - Tucson. In fiscal
year 2003-04, the Firm opened BASIS School - Scottsdale. To efficiently manage the
two schools, BASIS Services was created. The two school locations and BASIS Services
collectively comprise the Firm. The Firm provides educational services to students in
fith through twelfth grades. The Firm operates under two charter contracts with the
Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, which mandates policy and operational
guidelines.

The significant accounting policies of the Firm are as follows:

Basis of Presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations, Under
SFAS No. 117, the Firm is required to report information regarding its financial position
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The Firm does not have any
permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2009.

Use of Estimates: In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Contributions: The Firm follows SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions Received
and Contributions Made. Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support based on the existence and/or
nature of any donor restrictions. All donor restricted support is reported as an increase in
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporatily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are
met in the same reporting period are reported as unrestricted support,



BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- Continued

Property and Equipment: Land, buildings and improvements and leasehold improvements
with an initial cost of $3,000 or more, and vehicles, fumiture and equipment with an
initial cost of $300 or more, with an estimated life of one year or more, are capitalized.
Textbooks with an estimated life of one year of more are capitalized. Assets are stated at
cost. Depreciation and amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. The estimated lives used in determining
depreciation and amortization are:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 3-5 years
Textbooks 3 years
Leasehold improvements life of the lease

Income Taxes: The Firm is exempt from Federal income taxes as an organization other
than a private foundation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and from
Arizona income taxes under Section 43-147(a)(4) of the Arizona Revised Statutes.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Expense Allocation: The costs of providing various programs and other activities have
been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Loan Issuance Costs: Loan issuance costs and origination fees are deferred and amortized
over the term of the loans.




BASIS School, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of required deposits associated with the long-term debt (see note
5) and can be used if normal operations of the Firm become impaired, The accounts are
held by Wells Fargo Trust Company as trustee. Restricted cash as of June 30, 2009 is as

follows:
Series 2006 Bond
Operating reserve - initial $ 140,450
Series 2007 Bond
Operating reserve - initial 236,722
Total $ 377472

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

At June 30, 2009, the Firm had no deposits that exceeded Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) limits, The Firm has not experienced any losses and due to the fact
that its deposits are fully insured, it is not exposed to any significant tisk, therefore, the

Firm has not developed any policies related to collateral.

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at June 30, 2009 consisted of the following:

Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles, furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Textbooks
Construction in progress

Total

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Depreciation for the year ended June 30, 2009 totaled $491,808.

$ 3,368,157
8,642,855
866,788
292,134
280,434
1.655
13,452,023

1.623,647
$11.828,376



BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30, 2009:

Education Revenue Bonds (Series 2006) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of Pima County, Arizona, in the aggregate
principal amount of $5,155,000. The proceeds of the bonds were
loaned to the Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated May 1, 2006.
The loan matures over 30 years with an effective interest rate of
approximately 8.09%. Monthly principal and interest payments vary,
and principal payments range from a minimum of $5,000 to a
maximum of $43,333. The loan proceeds are to be used by the Firm
for the following purposes: (i) to purchase land buildings and to fund
improvements; (ii) to fund a debt service reserve fund; (iii) for the
payment of loan issuance costs; and (iv) extinguishment of the
outstanding Series 2004 Education Revenue Bonds. The loan is
secured by a deed of trust on real property and through assignment of
State Equalization revenues of the Firm. $ 5,035,000

Education Revenue Bonds (Series 2007) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of Pima County, Arizona, in the aggregate
principal amount of $9,000,000. The proceeds of the bonds were
loaned to the Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated February 1,
2007. The loan matures over 30 years with an effective interest rate of
approximately 7.79%. Monthly principal and interest payments vary,
and principal payments range from a minimum of $8,333 to a
maximum of $106,250. The loan proceeds are to be used by the Firm
for the following purposes: (i) to purchase land buildings and to fund
improvements; (ii) to fund a debt service reserve fund; and, (jii) for
the payment of loan issuance costs. The loan is secured by a deed of
trust on real property and through assignment of State Equalization
revenues of the Firm. 8,900,000

$20,047 note payable for the purchase of a school vehicle, maturing
January 2011. Note is due in 60 installments of $398, which includes

interest at 7.24% 7.483
Total 13,942,483

Less current maturities 174.409
$ _13.768.,074



BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

The aggregate future minimum payments on long-term debt as of June 30, 2009, are as

follows:
Year ending June 30:

2010 $ 174,409
2011 188,074
2012 195,000
2013 210,000
2014 225,000
Thereafter -12.950.000

. $13.942.483

NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASE

The Firm has one lease for office space expiring June 30, 2009 and various other
operating leases for copier equipment expiring in 2012 and 2013. Rental expense for
those leases was $208,378 for the year ended June 30, 2009. Future minimum operating
lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2010 $ 32,952
2011 32,952
2012 29,940
2013 8.433

NOTE 7 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2009 are restricted for use in BASIS -
Scottsdale and BASIS - Tucson master teacher programs. |

10



BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Compliance: The Firm's compliance with certain laws and regulations is subject to review
by the State of Arizona, Office of the Auditor General and Department of Education.
Such reviews could result in adjustments or withholding of State Equalization assistance.

Commitment: In June 2009, the Firm entered into a 10-year agreement with BASIS
Educational Group, Inc. (BEG, a related party) to provide charter school management,
teaching services and administrative services, effective July 1, 2009. Fees for
management services, including site management services, in fiscal year 2009-2010 will
be $1,767,000. The subsequent years’ fees will be adjusted for cost-of-living and other
nongovernmental revenue growth adjustments. In addition, under the agreement all
teachers and non-management on-site personnel working at the Firm will be employees
of BEG and will be leased from BEG.

NOTE 9 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Approximately 85% of the Firm's revenue for the year ended June 30, 2009 was derived
from the State of Arizona through payments of State Equalization, Classroom Site Funds
(Proposition 301) and State of Arizona grants. Funds that are paid from the State of
Arizona are subject to funding approval from the state legislature. Changes in state
funding levels for charter schools could have a significant impact on the Firm's ability to
operate.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description: Permanent full-time and certain part-time employees of the Firm
participate in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). Benefits are established by state statute
and generally provide retirement, death, long-term disability, survivor, and health
insurance premium benefits. The ASRS is governed by the Arizona State Retirement
System Board according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2.

The ASRS issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. A recent report may be obtained by
writing the ASRS, 3300 North Central Avenue, PO Box 33910, Phoenix, AZ 85067-
3910, or by calling (602) 240-2000 or (800) 621-3778.

11



BASIS School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2009

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN - Continued

Funding Policy: The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan
members' and the Firm's contribution rates. For the year ended June 30, 2009, active plan
members and the Firm were each required by statute to contribute at the actuarially
determined rate of 9.45 percent (8.95 percent retirement and 0.50 percent long-term
disability). The Firm's contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 2009,
2008 and 2007 were $420,487, $362,348 and $239,201, respectively, which were equal to
the required contributions for each year.

Starting in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010, the Firm's employees will no longer
participate in the Arizona State Retirement System. See Note 8.

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY

Olga Block, the Firm's Executive Director, and her spouse, Michael Block, maintained
active Board member positions throughout the fiscal year. In June 2009, Ms. Block
resigned her position on the Board. As Board members, these individuals could influence
the financial and operational activities of the Firm through voting authority. The
combined voting power of Olga Block and Michael Block, however, did not constitute a
majority of the Board of Directors.

12
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Accountants Fax: (802) 265-6241

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors

BASIS School, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

We have audited the financial statements of BASIS School, Inc. (the Firm, a nonprofit
organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 30, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Ir planning and performing our audit, we considered the Firm's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Firm's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

13



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Firm's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of

noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management,
the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, and the Auditor General of the State of Arizona,
and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Feto s Chaprarn. FC.

October 30, 2009

14
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BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2009
Basis Basis
Basis School - School -
Services* Tucson Scottsdale Totals
ASSETS '
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 276,319 § 78,426 $ 92261 $ 447,006
Restricted cash 140,450 236,722 377,172
Accounts receivable 434 2,355 8,369 11,158
Prepaid expenses 3,960 2,112 1,230 7,302
Due from governmental entities 31,509 26,709 58,218
Other accrued revenues 25,000 28,000 53,000
Total Current Assets 280,713 279,852 393,291 953,856
Noncurrent Assets
Loar issuance cost, net of accumulated
amortization of $32,723 and
$36,842, respectively 276,910 352,654 629,564
Property and equipment - net 7,087 4,356,635 7,464,654 11,828,376
Total Noncorrent Assets 7,087 4,633,545 7,817,308 12,457,940
Total Assets $ 287,800 $ 4,913,397 § 8,210,599 §. 13i4l 1,796
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFIC
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  § 7,131 § 9426 § 16,874 § 33,431
Deferred revenues 3,300 18,800 22,100
Deposits held for others 102,055 109,460 211,515
Current maturities of long term debt 4,409 65,000 105,000 174,409
Other current liabilities ** 7,362 228,931 (236,293) 0
Total Current Liabilities 18,902 408,712 13,841 441,455
Nouncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 3,074 4,970,000 8,795,000 13,768,074
Total Liabilities 21,976 5,378,712 8,808,841 14,209,529
Net Assets (Deficif)
Unrestricted (deficit) 265,824 (536,949) (800,225) (1,071,350)
Temporarily restricted 71,634 201,983 273,617
Total Net Assets (Deficit) 265,824 (465,315) (598,242) (797,733)
Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit) $ 287,800 $ 4,913,397 § 8,2105599 $ 13,411,796

*#  Amounts include inter-school borrowing for the purpose of the Combining Statement of Financial Position
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BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
: BASIS BASIS
BASIS School - School -
Services * Tucson Scottsdale Totals
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 87,731 §$ (121,492) § (284,079) § (317,340)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 2,612 195,462 293,734 491,808
Amortization of loan issuance costs 10,321 12,745 23,066
Changes in:
Accounts receivable (434) (2,355) (8,369) {11,158)
Prepaid items (3,960) (1,523) 18,027 12,544
Due from governmental entities 13,859 78,044 91,903
Other accrued revenues 2,081 {20,409) (17,651) (35,979
Other assets . 20,118 5,416 26,525 52,059
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (143,234) 4,846 4,947 (133,441)
Deferred revenues 3,300 6,297 . 9,597
Deposits held for others 17,667 (1,932) 15,735
Other current liabilities (119,994) 13,447 106,547
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (155,080) 118,539 234,835 198,294
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Withdrawals from restricted cash 2,980 4,205 7,185
Purchase of property and equipment {4,259) (25,600) (59,514) (89,373)
Net cash used for investing activities (4,259) (22,620) (55,309) (82,188)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt (4,074 (60,000) (115,454) (179,528)
Net cash used for financing activities (4,074) {(60,000) (115,454) (179,528)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (163,413) 35919 64,072 (63,422)
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2008 439,732 42,507 28,189 510,428
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2009 $ 276,319 § 78,426 § 92,261 $ 447,006 -
Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest on long-term debt $ 705 $ 365,963 § 622,464 $ 989,132
—— ——— " ;§————————J — |
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BASIS School, Inc.

MASTER TEACHER PROGRAM SUMMARY

July 2008 through June 2009
Tucson Scottsdale Total

Beginning balance, July 1, 2008 $ 150285 b3 150,285
Master Teacher campaign 08/09 Receipts

Craig and Barbara Barrett Foundation contribution 150,000 150,000

UHC contribution (life science) $ 25,000 25,000 50,000

Other contributions 57,112 225918 283,030

Pledges 2,400 13,380 15,780

Fundraising events gross revenue v 18,400 18,400
Total gross proceeds 84,512 432,698 517,210
Expenses - Master Teacher campaign (8/09

Fundraising events direct costs 41,607 41,607

Other fundraising expenses 12,878 45,700 58,578
Total fundraisising expenses 12,878 87,307 100,185
Total net fandraising 08/09 71,634 345,391 417,025
Expended on teacher salaries in 08/09 293,693 293,693
Ending balance, June, 2009 - available for teacher salaries in 09/10  § 71,634 § 2010983 $ 273,617

Note: Total UHC contribution will be used for science teachers' salaries in 2009/2010

19




BASIS School, Inc,
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Covenants

Article VI, Special Covenants, Section 8.04 Audits

Debt Service Coverage Ratio. The Borrower will deliver to the Issuer, the Trustee, the Bondhelder
Representative and each Significant Bondholder within 30 days of the completion of the Borrower’s annual
audited financial statements, a Certificate executed by the Borrower stating the Debt Service Coverage Ratio.

Series 2006 Series 2007
Net income available for debt service;
Pledged revenue $ 8,309,143
Interest earnings see above -
Total operating expenses: $ 8,626,983
Net income {loss) (317,840) '
Add: depreciation 491,808
Add: amortization 23,066
Add: non-cash expenses -
Add: interest expense 989,132
Add: revenues paid by Firm, not from pledged revenues 1,186,166
Add back:
Extraordinary items -
Gain/loss on extguishement of debt -
Proceeds of insurance policies -
Net income available for debt service: 1,186,166
Maximum annual debt service requirement: Year Year
Highest principal and interest 2017-18 $ 420,550 2026-27 $ 1,129,425
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO: 2.8 11
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e Suite 275
Certified Phoenix, AZ 85012-2086

chte%Chapman e 4001 North 3rd Street

Tel: (602) 264-3077

Accountants Fax: (602) 265-6241
Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors

Basis School, Inc.

Scottsdale, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Basis School, Inc. (the
Fimm, a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2008, and the related statements of activities, and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Firm's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Basis School, Inc. as of June 30, 2008, and the changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 4, 2008, on our consideration of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting
ard our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
of the Firm taken as a whole, The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for the
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to anditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statzments and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

Foto t Dgomon PL .

November 4, 2008



BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2008

ASSETS

Current Assetls
Cash and cash equivalents $
Restricted cash
Prepaid expenses
Due from governmental cntities
Other accrued revenues
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Loan issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization of $46,499
Property and equipment ~ net
" Qther noncurrent assets
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets $

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $
Deferred revenues
Deposits held for others
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Long-term deposits held for others
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted (deficit)
Temporarily restricted net assets
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $

510,428
384,357
19,847
150,121
17,021
26,643

1,108,417

652,630
12,230,811
25,416

12,908,857

14,017,274

166,873

12,503
165,780
179,529

524,683

13,942,482
30,000

13,972,482

(630,178)
150,285

{479,893)

14,017,274




BASIS SCHOOL, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Revenue and Support ' '
State equalization $ 5,969,356 5,969,356
State grants 586,455 586,455
Federal grants 60,970 60,970
Extre-curricular activities fees tax credit $ 114,983 114,983
Special event 369,875 369,875
less cost of direct benefits to donors (70,380} (70,380)
Other revenue 628,408 628,408
Net assets relcased from restriction 264,193 (264,193)
Total Revenue and Support 7,509,382 150,285 7,659,667
Program Services Expenses
Salaries and wages 3,508,729 3,508,729
Pension plan contributions 318,351 318,351
Other employee benefits 250,916 250,916
Payroll taxes 271,151 271,151
Legal fees 10,320 10,320
Supplies 181,988 181,988
Telephone 19,360 19,360
Postage and shipping 9,159 9,159
Qccupancy 396,762 396,762
Equipment rental and maintenance 9,412 9,412
Printing and publication 49,474 49,474
Travel 63,744 63,744
Conferences and meetings 1,560 1,560
Depreciation 490,107 490,107
Other expenses 474,764 474,764
Total Program Services 6,055,797 6,055,797
Management & General Expenses
Compensation of officers 315,000 315,000
Other salaries and wages 154,027 154,027
Pension plan contributions 43,997 43,997
Other employee benefits 21,112 21,112
Payroll taxes 31,716 31,716
Accounting fees 79,918 79,918
Supplies 3,340 3,340
Telephone 1,481 1,481
Postage and shipping 690 690
Travel 2,726 2,726
Interest 898,220 898,220
Amoritzation of loan issuance costs 23,066 23,066
Other expenses 100,508 100,508
‘Total Management & General 1,675,801 1,675,801
Total Expenses 7,731,598 7,731,598
Change in Net Assets (222,216} 150,285 (71,931)
Net Assets, July 1, 2007, as restated (407,962) (407,962)
Net Assets, June 30, 2008 $ 5630,1782 $ 150,285 $ 5479,8932



BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: )
Change in net assets $ (71,931)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 490,107
Amortization of loan issuance costs 23,066
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses (65,864)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 12,503
Increase (decrease) in deposits held for others 42,515
Increase (decrease )in other current liabilites (21,365)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid items 2,700
Decrease (increase) in due from governmental entities as restated (113,107)
Decrease (increase) in other assets (25,394)
Net cash provided by operating activities 273,230
Cash Flows From Investing Activities: _
Withdrawals from restricted cash 2,132,235
Purchase of property and equipment (1,851,086)
Net cash provided by investing activities 281,149
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt {79,861)
Net cash used for financing activities (79,861)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 474,518
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2007 35910
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2008 $ 510,428
Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest on long-term debt $ . 898,220
e e ————



Basis School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis School, Inc. (the Firm) is an Arizona not-for-profit organization formed in fiscal
year 1998-99. In fiscal year 1998-99, the Firm opened Basis School - Tucson. In fiscal
year 2003-04, the Firm opened Basis School - Scottsdale. To efficiently manage the two
schools, Basis Services was created. The two school locations and Basis Services
collectively comprise the Firm. The Firm provides educational services to students in
fifth through twelfth grades. The Firm operates under two charter contracts with the
Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, which mandates policy and operational
guidelines.

The significant accounting policies of the Firm are as follows:

Basis of Presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under
SFAS No. 117, the Firm is required to report information regarding its financial position
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The Firm does not have any
permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2008.

Use of Estimates: In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Contributions: The Firm follows SFAS No. 116, Accounting for Contributions Received
and Contributions Made.  Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support based on the existence and/or
nature of any donor restrictions. All donor restricted support is reported as an increase in
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activity as net assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in
the same reporting period are reported as unrestricted support.



Basis School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- Continued :

Property and Equipment: Land, Buildings and improvements, and leasehold
improvements with an initial cost of $3,000 or vehicles, furniture and equipment with an
initial cost of $300 or more and an estimated life of one year or more are capitalized.
Assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is provided on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. The estimated lives used in
determining depreciation and amortization are:

Buildings and improvements - 40 years
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 3-5 years
Leaschold improvements life of the lease

Income Taxes: The Firm is exempt from Federal income taxes as an organization other
than a private foundation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and from
Arizona income taxes under Section 43-147(a)(4) of the Arizona Revised Statutes.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
Expense Allocation: The costs of providing various programs and other activities have
been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain

costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Loan Issuance Costs: Loan issuance costs and origination fees are deferred and amortized
over the term of the loan.




Basis School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of required deposits associated with the long-term debt (see note
5) and can be used if normal operations of the Firm become impaired. The accounts are
held by Wells Fargo Trust Company as trustee. Restricted cash as of June 30, 2008 is as

follows:
Series 2006 Bond
Bond fund $ 1,452
Operating reserve - initial 141,978
Series 2007 Bond
Bond fund 1,632
Operating reserve - initial 239,295
Total $..384337

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
At June 30, 2008, the Firm had $301,625 of deposits that exceeded Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits. The Firm has not experienced any losses in such
accounts, however the Firm as instituted policies whereby they now to attempt to
miminze the uninsured cash balances,

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at June 30, 2008 consisted of the following:

Land and improvements $ 3,368,157
Buildings and improvements 8,642,855
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 834,605
Leasehold improvements 292,133
Textbooks 306.807

Total 13,444,557
Less accumulated depreciation 1.213.746
Property and equipment, net $12.230.811

Depreciation for the year ended June 30, 2008 totaled $490,107.



Basis School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30, 2008:

Education Revenue Bonds (Series 2006) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of Pima County, Arizona, in the aggregate
principal amount of $5,155,000. The proceeds of the bonds were
loaned to the Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated May 1, 2006.
The loan matures over 30 years with an effective interest rate of
approximately 8.09%. Monthly principal and interest payments vary,
and principle payments range from a minimum of $5,000 to a
maximum of $43,333. The loan proceeds are to be used by the Firm
for the following purposes: (i) to purchase land buildings and to fund
improvements; (ii) to fund a debt service reserve fund; (iii) for the
payment of loan issuance costs; and (iv) extinguisment of the
outstanding series 2004 education revenue bonds. The loan is secured
by a deed of trust on real property and through assignment of State
Equalization Revenues of the Firm. $ 5,095,000

Education Revenue Bonds (Series 2007) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of Pima County, Arizona, in the aggregate
principal amount of $9,000,000. The proceeds of the bonds were
loaned to the Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated February 1,
2007. The loan matures over 30 years with an effective interest rate of
approximately 7.79%. Monthly principal and interest payments vary,
and principle payments range from a minimum of $8,333 to a
maximum of $106,250. The loan proceeds are to be used by the Firm
for the following purposes: (i) to purchase land buildings and to fund
improvements; (ii) to fund a debt service reserve fund; and, (iii) for
the payment of loan issuance costs. The loan is secured by a deed of
trust on real property and through assignment of State Equalization
Revenues of the Firm. 9,000,000

$20,047 note payable for the purchase of a school vehicle, maturing
January of 2011, Note is due in 60 installments of $398, which
includes interest at 7.24% 11,557



Basis School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

$63,716 leasehold improvement financed through a note payable to
the leaseholder. Note is due in 49 installments of $1,440, which

includes interest at 5.00%. 15.454
Total 14,122,011
Less current maturities 179.529

§.13.942,482

The aggregate future minimum payments on long-term debt as of June 30, 2008, were as

follows:
Year ending June 30:

2009 $ 179,529
2010 174,409
2011 188,073
2012 195,000
2013 210,000
Thereafter 13,175,000

$14,122.011

NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASE

The Firm has one lease for office space and various other leases for copier equipment.
Rental expense for those leases was $203,921 for the year ended June 30, 2008. Future
minimum operating lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2009 $ 230,497
2010 26,928
2011 26,928
2012 26,928
2013 8.433

$ 319714
NOTE 7 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2008 are restricted for use in Basis -
Scottsdale's master teacher program.
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Basis School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Compliance: The Firm's compliance with certain laws and regulations is subject to review
by the State of Arizona, Office of the Auditor General and Department of Education.
Such reviews could result in adjustments or withholding of state equalization assistance.

NOTE 9 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Approximately 86% of the Firm's revenue for the year ended June 30, 2008 was derived
from the State of Arizona through payments of state equalization and Classroom Site
(Proposition 301) funds for charter schools and State of Arizona grants. Funds that are
paid from the State of Arizona are subject to funding approval from the state legislature.
Changes in state funding levels for charter schools could have a significant impact on the
Firm's ability to operate.

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description: Permanent full-time and certain part-time employees of the Firm
participate in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). Benefits are established by state statute
and generally provide retirement, death, long-term disability, survivor, and health
insurance premium benefits. The ASRS is governed by the Arizona State Retirement
System Board according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2.

The ASRS issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. A recent report may be obtained by
writing the ASRS, 3300 North Central Avenue, PO Box 33910, Phoenix, AZ 85067-
3910, or by calling (602) 240-2000 or (800) 621-3778.

Funding Policy: The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan
members' and the Firm's contribution rates. For the year ended June 30, 2008, active plan
members and the Firm were each required by statute to contribute at the actuarially
determined rate of 9.10 percent (8.6 percent retirement and 0.50 percent long-term
disability). The Firm's contributions to the System for the years ended June 30, 2008,
2007 and 2006 were $362,348, $239,201 and $144,301, respectively, which were equal to
the required contributions for each year.

11



Basis School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 11 - RELATED PARTY

Olga Block, the Firm's Executive Director, and her spouse, Michael Block, maintain
active Board member positions. As Board members, these individuals influence the
financial and operational activities of the Firm through voting authority. The combined
voting power of Olga Block and Michael Block, however, does not constitute a majority
of the Board of Directors.

NOTE 12 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the Firm’s management became aware of certain
items that had not been properly recorded in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in prior years due to misinterpretation of relevant accounting
pronouncements. As a result, the Firm has recorded prior period adjustments to correct net
assets as of June 30, 2007, as discussed below.

During the year ended June 30, 2006, the Firm extinguished certain outstanding series
2004 education revenue bonds as part of a refinancing of debt to allow the Firm to expand
their facilities. Tax free securities' with a cost in excess of the carrying amount of the
bonds were acquired to effect the extinguishment of the debt. During the year ended June
30, 2006, the difference between the cost of the tax free securities and the carrying amount
of the bonds was improperly recorded as a deferred charge and amortized over the life of
the new debt rather than being recorded as a current period monrecurring expense as
required by generally accepted accounting principles, An adjustment to reduce unrestricted
net assets by $431,019 as of June 30, 2007 has been recorded in the financial statements to
correct the accounting treatment for this transaction.

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the Firm recorded Classroom Site funds of $40,235
received during August 2007 as revenues for the year ended June 30, 2007. It was
determined by management that these revenues actually related to the 2007-08 school
year. As aresult, an adjustment has been recorded to reduce restricted net assets as of June
30, 2007 by this amount.

During prior years, certain revenues from unrestricted exchange transactions were
improperly classified as temporarily restricted net assets. Due to the unrestricted nature of
these revenues, a prior period adjustment in the amount of $90,995 has been recorded to

reclassify these revenues from temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets as
of June 30, 2007.
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Basis School, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 12 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - Continyed
The impact of these prior period adjustments is summarized as follows:
Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets

Net assets as of June 30, 2007, as previously
reported $ (67,938) § 131,230 §$ 63,292

Adjustment due to the extinguishment of debt (431,019) (431,019)

Fiscal year 2007-08 revenues recognized in
fiscal year 2006-07 (40,235) (40,235)

Reclassification of unrestricted exchange

transactions —90.995 90,995
Net assets as of June 30, 2007, as restated (407962 §___ ___$ (407.962)
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Fester orh 1 Stoe
C‘jChapman DO 4001 North 3rd St

Suite 275
Certified Phoenix, AZ 85012-2086

Fublic Tel: {602) 264-3077
Accountants Fax: (602) 265-6241

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
of Basis School, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

We have audited the financial statements of Basis School, Inc. (the Firm, a nonprofit
organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon
dated November 4, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Firm's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Firm's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the Firm's ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Firm's
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the
Firm's internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that

results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the Firm's internal control.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Firm's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results ‘of our tests disclosed no instances of

noncomplijance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management,
the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, and the Auditor General of the State of Arizona,
and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Tote, } Lagnan €.

November 4, 2008
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BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
DETAIL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2008
Basis Basis
Basis School - School -
Services* Tueson Scottsdale Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 439,732 § 42,507 § 28,189 § 510,428
Restricted cash 143,430 240,927 384,357
Prepaid expenses 590 19,257 19,847
Due from governmental entities 45,368 104,753 150,121
Other accrued revenues 2,081 4,591 10,349 17,021
Other current assets . 20,118 6,525 26,643
Total Current Assets 461,931 236,486 410,000 1,108,417
Noncurrent Assets
Loan issuance costs, net of accumulated
amortization of $22,402 and
$24,097, respectively 287,231 365,399 652,630
Property and equipment - net 5,440 4,526,496 7,698,875 12,230,811
QOther noncurrent assets 5,416 20,000 25,416
Total Noncurrent Assets 5,440 4,819,143 8,084,274 12,908,857
Total Assets $ 467,371 § 5,055,629 $ 8,494,274 § 14,017,274
LIABILITIES ASS
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $ 150,365 $ 4580 § 11,928 § 166,873
Deferred revenues 12,503 12,503
Depcsits held for others 84,388 81,392 165,780
Current maturities of long-term debt 4,075 60,000 115,454 179,529
Other current liabilities ** 127,356 215,484 (342,840)
Total Current Liabilities 281,796 364,452 (121,563) 524,685
Noncnrrent Liabilitles
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 7,482 5,035,000 8,900,000 13,942,482
Long-term deposits held for others 30,000 30,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7482 5,035,000 8,930,000 13,972,482
Net Assets
Unrestricted (deficit) 178,093 (343,823) (464,448) (630,178)
Temporarily restricted net asscts 150,285 150,285
Total Net Asséts 178,093 (343,823) (314,163) (479,893)
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 467371 § 5,055§629 3 85494,274 $ 14,017,274

* Basis School - Tucson and Basis School - Scottsdale pay 25% of state aid +25% of unrestricted extracurricural revenues to
Basis Services for administrative services and a part of SPED services; therefore, these duplicate transactions are eliminated,

*+ Asmounts include inter-school borrowing for the purpose of the Detail Statement of Financial Position
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BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
DETAIL STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by (used in) operating ectivities:

Depreciation

Amortization of loan issuance costs

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues

Increass (decrease) in deposits held for others

Increase (decrease )in other current liabilites

Decrease (increase) in prepaid items

Decrease (increase) in due from governmental entities **
Decrease (increase) in other assets

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Withdrawals from restricted cash
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash used for financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2007

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2008

Supplemental data:

3

§

Cash paid for interest on long-term debt $

—

Basis Basis

Basis School - School - A

Services * Tucson Scottsdale Totals
96,505 $ 9,686 $ (178,122) § (71,931)
1,279 194,567 294,261 490,107
10,321 12,745 23,066
131,156 3,696 (200,716) (65,864)
12,503 12,503
21,360 21,155 42,515
230,539 274,870 {526,774) (21,365)
929 1,771 2,700
(20,739} (92,368) (113,107)
(21,926) 1,087 (4,555) (25,394)
437,553 495777 (660,100) 273,230
246 2,131,989 2,132,235
(2,818) (441,006) (1,407,262) (1,851,086)
(2,818) (440,760) 724,727 281,149
(3,789) (60,000) (16,072) (79,861)
(3,789) (60,000) (16,072) {79,861)
430,946 {4,983) 48,555 474,518
8,786 47,490 (20,366) 35,910
439,732 § 42507 § 28,189 §$ 510,428

p—————————— -

993 § 370,659 $ 526,568 § 898,220

* Basis School - Tucson and Basis School - Scottsdale pay 25% of state aid +25% of unrestricted extracurricural revenues to Basis

Services for administrative services and a part of SPED services; therefore, these duplicate transactions are eliminated.

** Aug 07 payment of 301 money, i.e. actually CSF payment #1 in FY08, that was included in FY 07 revenues and due from
governmental entities accrual by auditors in Audit 07 financial statements was shift to FY08 revenues and removed from due from

governmental entities accrual FY07



BASIS School, Inc

SCOTTSDALE MASTER TEACHER PROGRAM SUMMARY

July 2007 through June 2008
Eﬂensu Gross Contributions Net Proceeds

Receipts

Barrett Contribution $ 150,000 § 150,000

Campaign 07/08 208,375 208,375
Pledges 11,500 11,500
Expenses

Dinner Event Expenses $ 61,850 (61,850)

Capitalized Expenses on Donor Wall 4,386 {4,386)

Other Campaign Expenses 4,143 _ {4,143)
Total Fandraising 70,380 369,875 209,495
Total Available for Teacher Salaries 299,495
Expended on Teacher Salaries 2007/2008 149,210 (149,210)
Total Available for Teacher Salaries 2008/2009 219,590 369,875 150,285
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BASIS School, Inc.
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO

June 30, 2008

Covenants

Article Vill, Special Covenants, Section 8.04 Audits

Debt Service Coverage Ratio. The Borrower will deliver to the Issuer, the Trustee, the Bondholder Representative
and each Significant Bondholder within 30 days of the completion of the Borrower’s annual audited financial
statements, a Certificate executed by the Borrower stating the Debt Service Coverage Ratio.

Series 2006 Series 2007
Net income available for debt service:
Pledged Revenue $ 7,659,667
Interest earnings see above -
Total Operating Expenses: $ 7,731,598
Net Income (loss) (71,931}
Add: Depreciation 490,107
Add: Amortization 23,066
Add: Non cash expenses -
Add: interest expense S 898,220
Add: Revenues paid by School, not from Pledged revenues 1,339,462
add back:
Extraordinary (tems -
gain/loss on extguishement of debt -
Proceeds of insurance policies -
Net income available for debt service: m
Maximum Annual Debt Service Requirement: Year Year
Highest Principle and Interest 2017-18 420,550 2026-27 1,129,425

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO: 3.2
E——————e

1.2
—_——
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Attachment 26: Litigation Documentation

Pending Legal Claims Against BSI:

1.

Monroe v. BSI:

A. Demand: Former student of BASIS Tucson filed a complaint in Pima County Superior Court
alleging that BSI was negligent in failing to provide a crossing guard at a major intersection
one block from the school. As a result, she claims she was struck while crossing this
intersection on her bike (against a green arrow) on her way home from school. She was an
unaccompanied fifth grader at the time of the accident. She seeks damages for permanent
physical injuries in the amount of $1,325,999.00.

B. Response: BSI denies that it was negligent and/or that its negligence caused the girl’s injuries.

C. Status: The case is in the early stages of discovery and is not set for trial until late 2012.

Boyle v. BSI:
A. Demand: Parent filed complaint against BSI with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for

Civil Rights alleging that BSI discriminated based on race and sex when BASIS Oro Valley
(i) expelled her daughter for, among other things, threating the life of a teacher, and (ii) failed
to re-enroll her son after she terminated his enroliment and did not re-register him.

B. Response: BSI has submitted a written response and documentation to the Department
showing that its actions were consistent with applicable state Charter law and its enrollment
policies and procedures.

C. Status: The matter is still pending.

Crow v. BEG/BSI
A. Demand: Former teacher at BASIS Scottsdale sought to arbitrate claims for breach of
contract/wrongful termination based on BASIS Educational Group’s decision not to renew
his term contract. The teacher sought damages of $3,000,000.00.
B. Response: BEG/BSI moved for summary judgment on the merits.
C. Status: BEG/BSI’s motion for summary judgment was granted and the teacher’s claims

were dismissed.

4. Priserv. BEG & BSI

A. Demand: Teacher hired to teach at BASIS Tucson at the age of 63 filed an age
discrimination suit in Pima County Superior Court against BEG and BSI claiming that the
decision not to renew his term contract on competency grounds was a pretext for age
discrimination. He seeks an undisclosed amount of damages for ongoing loss of
employment and emotional distress as well as punitive damages.

B. Response: BEG/BSI removed the case to federal court, sought arbitration pursuant to the
terms of the subject contract, and the matter has been referred to arbitration. BSI will
seek dismissal for failure to exhaust administrative remedies. BEG will pursue dismissal
on the merits.



C. Status: The case has just been referred to arbitration. To date, Plaintiff has taken no
action to initiate the arbitration process by submitting the required pleading and filing
fee.

We are awaiting response from our previous counsel on all other matters of litigation throughout our
school’s history. Once these are compiled, we will make them available to the ICSB and IDE if
necessary.
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	Grading period 2:  Lessons 21 – 46 and Investigations 2, 3 and 4, pages 130 - 322
	Grading period 3: Lessons 47 – 70 and Investigations 5 and 6 pages 323 - 480
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	Student Name (Please Print)___________________________  
	Student Signature___________________________  Date____________
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	LEAP Trimester 3:
	16.1Electric Charge, Insulators and Conductors Chapter 16 [C3]   Feb. 9
	16.2Coulomb’s Law        - Mar. 6
	16.3Electric Field and Field Lines
	17.1Electric Potential and Equipotential Lines Chapter 17 [C3] Mar. 9
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	This paper must be signed and dated by both the student and the student’s parent or guardian to signify that these rules and regulations have been read and understood.  All students are required to make this syllabus a permanent part of their notebook for this class.
	Student Name (Please Print)___________________________  
	Student Signature___________________________  Date____________

	IGCSE 8th Economics Syllabus
	Senior Capstone Biology Syllabus 10-11
	Trimester I
	Trimester II
	Trimester I

	Individual Primary Research Project:  This project is an in depth analysis of several papers.
	Trimester II
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	Attachment 7_Enrollment Policy
	Attachment 8_Student Discipline Policy
	Attachment 9_Articles of Incorporation Board Bylaws and Policies
	BYLAWS.pdf
	ARTICLE 1   OFFICES AND CORPORATE SEAL
	1.1 Principal Office.     The principal office of the Basis School, Inc., an Arizona nonprofit corporation (the “Corporation”) shall be its known place of business in Tucson, Arizona
	1.2 Offices.  The Corporation also may maintain offices at such other place or places, either within or without the State of Arizona, as may be designed from time to time by the Board of Directors and the business of the Corporation may be transacted ...
	1.3 Corporate Seal.  A corporate seal shall not be requisite to the validity of any instrument executed by or on behalf of the Corporation, but one may be used if the officers or the Board of Directors so decide.

	ARTICLE 2   PURPOSES
	2.1 Charitable Purposes.  The purposes for which the Corporation is formed are those set forth in its Articles of Incorporation, initially being organized exclusively for educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501 ( c) (3) of the Internal ...
	2.2 Schools; School Boards; Advisory Boards; and Oversight Committees     Among its activities, the Corporation will develop and operate one or more schools, either within or without the State of Arizona.  Each such school shall be provided with such ...
	2.2.1 Arizona Charter  Schools.  For such of the  schools as are charter schools within the meaning of Arizona Revised Statutes section 15-183, the foregoing provisions of this section 2.2 are modified as follows:  each such school holding a separate ...

	2.3 Dividends Prohibited .  The Corporation is not formed for pecuniary or financial gain, and no part of the assets, income, or profit of the Corporation is distributable to, or will inure to the benefit of, its directors or officers or other private...

	ARTICLE 3   MEMBERSHIP
	The Corporation will not have members.

	ARTICLE 4   DIRECTORS
	4.1 Number; Chairman.  The board of directors shall consist of not less than three (3) persons nor more than nine (9) persons as determined by the board.  The directors may choose from among their number a Chairman of the Board, who shall preside at t...
	4.2 Vacancies.  Vacancies and newly created directorship resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of remaining directors then in office, though not less than a quorum, or by ...
	4.3 Powers.  The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors.
	4.4 Place of Meeting.  The Board of Directors of the Corporation may hold meetings, both regular, and special, either within or without the State of Arizona. Such may be held by mean of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means...
	4.5 Annual Meeting.  The annual meeting of the board of directors shall be held before July 1 or at such other date and time as shall be designated by the Board of Directors and stated in the notice of meeting. Notice to the current Board of Directors...
	4.6 Regular Meetings.  Regular meetings or the Board of Directors may be held without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be determined by the Board.
	4.7 Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board may be called by the president or Chairman of the Board or the secretary on ten (10) days notice to each director, either personally, by e-mail, by mail, by telegram or by telephone. Special meeting...
	4.8 Quorum.  A majority of the membership of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum and the concurrence of a majority of those present shall be sufficient to conduct the business of the Board, except as may be otherwise specifically provided...
	4.9 Action without Meeting.  Unless otherwise restricted by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting...
	4.10  Waiver Notice.  Attendance by a director at a meeting shall constitute waiver of notice of such meeting, except when the person attends the meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is no...
	4.11  Compensation.  The amount or rate of such compensation of members of the Board of Directors or of committees shall be established by the Board of Directors and shall be set forth in the minutes of the board.

	ARTICLE 5   OFFICERS
	5.1 Designation of Titles. The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the Board of Directors and shall be a president, a secretary and a treasurer. The Board of Directors also may choose  one or more vice presidents, one or more assistant secr...
	5.2 Appointment of Officers.  The Board or Directors at each annual meeting shall elect a president, a secretary and a treasurer,  each of whom shall serve at the pleasure of the Board  of Directors. The Board of Directors at any time may appoint such...
	5.3 Salaries  The salaries of the officers shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors, and no officer shall be prevented form receiving such salary by reason of the fact that he is also a director of the Corporation.
	5.4 Term.  The officers of the Corporation shall hold office until their successors are chosen and qualify on their stead. Any officer elected by the Board of directors may be removed at any time by the board of directors, .  If the office of any offi...
	5.5 President.  The president shall function as the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation.  He or she shall sign all deeds and conveyances, all contracts and agreements and all other instruments requiring execution on the behalf of the Corporatio...
	5.6 Secretary.  The secretary shall see that the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and of any standing committees are kept. He or she shall be the custodian of the corporate seal and shall affix it to all proper instruments when deemed...
	5.7 Treasurer.  The treasurer shall have general custody of all the funds and securities of the Corporation. He or she shall see to the deposit of the funds of the Corporation in such bank or banks as the Board of Directors may designate. Regular book...

	ARTICLE 6                                        COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS
	The Board of Directors may, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board designate one (1) or more committees, to consist of two (2) or more members of the Directors of the Corporation. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolu...

	ARTICLE 7                             NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY STATEMENT
	It shall be the policy of the Corporation and of any school operated by the Corporation that such school shall admit students of any race, color, national, and ethnic origin to all the rights, privileges, programs, and activities generally accorded or...

	ARTICLE 8   REPEAL ALTERATION OR AMENDMENT
	These Bylaws may be repealed, altered or amended, or substitute Bylaws may be adopted at any time, only by a majority of the board of directors.
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